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Gauteng Tourism Authority General Information 

REGISTERED NAME: Gauteng Tourism Authority

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 124 Main Street

                                           Marshalltown

                                          Johannesburg

      South Africa

POSTAL ADDRESS:         PO Box 155

                                          Newtown

                                          2113

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:    (011) 085 - 2500

EMAIL ADDRESS:      info@gauteng.net

WEBSITE ADDRESS:   www.gauteng.net

INTERNAL AUDITORS:   Rakoma &Associates Inc. 

BANKERS:  First National Bank/SA Reserve Bank 
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List of Abbreviations/Acronym

ACSA  Airport Company South Africa
AFS  Annual Financial Statement
AGSA  Auditor-General of South Africa
APP  Annual Performance Plan
B-BBEE  Broad- Based Black Economic   
 Empowerment
BRICS  Brazil, Russia, India, China, South Africa
CEO  Chief Executive Officer
CFO  Chief Financial Officer
CoHWHS Cradle of Humankind World Heritage  
        Site
CRM  Customer Relationship Management
CSD  Central Supplier Database
DMO  Destination Marketing Organization
FMPPI  Framework for Managing Programme 

Performance Information  
FY  Financial Year
GCR  Gauteng City Region
GDED  Gauteng Department of Economic 

Development 
GEP  Gauteng Enterprise Propeller
GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting   
 Practice
GTA  Gauteng Tourism Authority
HR  Human Resources
IAGR  International Association of Gaming 

Regular 
KPA  Key Performance Areas
KPI  Key Performance Indicator
MEC  Member of Executive Council
MICE  Meeting Incentives Convention and 

Exhibitions
MTEF  Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
MTSF  Mid-Term Strategic Framework
NDP  National Development Plan
OHSA  Occupational Health and Safety Act
OHS  Occupational Health and Safety
PFMA  Public Finance Management Act
PR Public Relations
REF  Request for Event Proposal

SADC  Southern African Development   
 Community
SAPS  South African Police Service 
SAT  South African Tourism
SCM  Supply Chain Management
SDIP  Service Delivery Improvement Plan
SMME  Small Medium and Micro Enterprise
SSA  Statistics South Africa
TBCSA  Tourism Business Council of South   
 Africa
TER  Township Economic Revitalisation
TMR  Transformation, Modernisation and 

Reindustrialization 
TR  Treasury Regulations
UNWTO  United Nations World Tourism 

Organization
VFR  Visiting Friends, Family and Relatives
VICs  Visitor Information Centers
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Message from the MEC:
LEBOGANG MAILE

Tough and challenging economic conditions persisted in 
the 2016/17 financial year, weighing down on growth 
across most sectors of the economy. Hard hit has been 
traditional drivers of the South African economy such as 
mining, manufacturing and financial services. The muted 
growth invariably negatively affected disposable income 
leading to consumers cutting down on luxury expenditure, 
including leisure travel, which is an important component of 
the tourism market. How ever, rays of hope began to emerge 
in the year under review. The renewed weakness of the rand 
made South Africa an attractive, alluring and competitive 
tourism destination. This, coupled with a faster recovery in 
some of our key source markets, helped redeem the tourism 
sector. The amendments to the immigration regulations that 
diminished visitor numbers played a role in ameliorating the 
downward trend experi enced in the previous year.

In the year under review, tourism in Gauteng performed well, 
making a critical contribution to job creation and the broaer 
economy. Figures from international financial services com-
pany MasterCard, released late in 2016, show that

Johannesburg remains the most visited city in Africa, 
ahead     of iconic destinations on the continent such 

as the Egyptian city of Cairo. The City of Gold 
attracted a whopping 3.6 million visitors in 

2016. This shows that our humble efforts to 
grow tourism in Gauteng City Region are bearing 

fruit. We, however, cannot afford to become com
placent. Competition for the tourist dollar from internal 

and outside destinations is likely to continue unabated. 

We have a dedicated focus on select source markets such 
as the Southern African Development Community countries, 
Ghana and Nigeria in West Africa, Kenya in East Africa, 
and Brazil, India and China.  Gauteng City Region must 
consolidate and grow its market share. This calls for us to 
focus on market research that will generate intelligence that 
will inform our future planning. We need better insights into 
travel ler behaviour and motivations so that, together with the 
travel trade, we can design, package and sell tourism 
products and experiences that appeal to growing numbers 
of visitors. This is one of the areas that we are focusing on 
strengthening as we forge ahead with our aim of making 
Gauteng an at tractive and competitive tourism destination.

In all of our work, we have been driven by the focus of the 
fifth administration, led by Premier David Makhura, on the 
revitalisation of the township economy. To this end, tourism 
has a fundamental role to play. The National Development 
Plan (NDP) and our own Gauteng Economic Development 
Plan rec ognise the role that the visitor economy can play 
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in taking the country and our city region forward. The 
tourism sector remains replete with untapped potential to 
create jobs and entrepreneurial opportunities where people 
live. This should assist in undoing some of the spatial 
development problems that apartheid bequeathed us. 

The efforts of the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) to create 
market access for township entrepreneurs are encouraging. 
The support for various township markets where all manner 
of goods are sold, and taking along township products and 
experiences to international exhi bitions, are some of the 
important initiatives undertaken. Further, through supporting 
township leisure events and the creation of business 
opportunities for previously disadvan taged entrepreneurs 
at signature events in the province, the GTA has amplified 
its impact. Signature events that GTA sup ports include the 
Standard Bank Joy of Jazz, DSTV Delicious Food and Music 
Festival and the Gauteng Sansui Summer Cup.

There is a growing focus on leveraging business tourism for 
the benefit of the visitor economy of the townships. While we 
acknowledge infrastructure deficiencies in terms of conference 
venues, accommodation and telecommunications, we 
are fully behind the GTA mission to take more meetings, 
conferences and exhibitions to  non-traditional areas.We 
hope that the MICE (Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and 
Exhi bitions) industry will come to the party in this regard. The 
Department of Economic Development will work together with 
all stakeholders including municipalities and the travel trade 
to build new and/or improve the existing MICE infrastructure.

We look forward to the 2017/18 financial year with 
confidence that our strategic interventions will continue to 
grow the tourism sector so that it can play its role in us 
achieving our broader policy goals andobjectives as a 
provincial government. In partnership with the private sector 
and other stakeholders, we believe that we can grow and 
transform the tourism sector so that it creates meaningful 
employment and gives our people the opportunity to create 
a better life for themselves.

Lebogang Maile

Member of Executive Council
Department of Economic Development, Environment, 
Agricul ture and Rural Development
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Foreword by the Chairperson 
of the Board

The year under review was a milestone for the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority as we focused on the revised mandate of 
destination marketing. It has been through this focus area that 
all energies were spent to make sure that we deliver on our 
Annual Performance Plan. 

Travel and tourism remains amongst the highest performing 
sectors of the global economy, with South Africa recorded 
a GDP direct contribution of R127.9 billion, a 3.0 percent  
of total GDP in 2016, and a GDP total contribution of 
R402.2 billion, a 9.3 percent of GGDP in 2016.

As tourism remains an important contributor to the Gauteng’s 
economic growth, the GTA remained a key voice for 
Destination Gauteng by introducing destination Gauteng to 
visitors from local and around the world, with the industry 
providing excellent tourism services to visitors. 

The Gauteng’s 2016/17 records regarding visitation and 
spend levels are the testimonies of its status on local and 
international platforms as a “… Africa’s must see, big-city 

region experience!”.  Gauteng welcomed an estimated 
623,124 international visitors and witnessed 4.4 

million trips pouring into the province in 2016. 
These statistics declares that Gauteng enjoyed 

a good performance recording growth in 
both visitor arrivals, and spent generated in the 

province. Number of arrivals grew by 17 percent, 
above the country’s growth percentage of 13 percent.

In the past years, engagement with key industry 
stakeholders was not formalised. The 2016/17 financial 

year marked the Authority’s initiation of engaging key 
stakeholders towards formal relationships. This led to initiation 
of formal relationships with the Airport Company South 
Africa (ACSA), Tsogo Sun international, Soico (Mozambican 
Media Company); Tourism Business Council of South Africa 
(TBCSA), different Regions of the Province and other key 
stakeholders within the Tourism sector.  

We continued to implement the Gauteng Events and Bidding 
strategy, which its purpose is to use the events to contribute 
towards realising the priorities of the Transformation, 
Modernisation dependent on ad-hoc proposals received 
from Events’ Organisers with poor investment levels. The 
2016/17 financial year marked major transformation within 
our events support programme. The Authority initiated a 
new approach for supporting events, where events should 
be evaluated using an event impact tool that assess aspects 
such as social and economic impact of an event. This was 
one of the tremendous move that will assist Gauteng to 
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determine the value of events in line with the attributes of the 
TMR Programme. 

Due to other pressing provincial priorities, 2016/17 financial 
year, the Authority experienced serious budget cuts. This called 
for tactical adjustments in implementing our programmes. Our 
success relating to tactical budget adjustments are attested 
through the 93.3 percent performance achievement against 
2016/17 set targets. 

On behalf of the staff and the Board of Directors, I would 
like to thank the honourable MEC of Agriculture, Rural 
Development and Economic Development, Lebogang Maile 
and, Head of the Department of the Gauteng Department 
of Economic Development (GDED), Ms Phindile Mbanjwa 
for their support as well as leadership to the Agency in 
implementing its 2016/17 Annual Performance Plan (APP). 

I thank the Gautengers for the encouraging embracement 
of Destination Gauteng and their contribution to their 
communities. They made 2016/17 another busy year for 
tourism in Gauteng. 

Thanks and appreciations to all the members of the GTA’s 
Board of Directors and its Committees for their guidance, 
perseverance and their time. 

A special thanks to the CEO, Mr Siphiwe Ngwenya, 
Management team and the GTA’ staff for their commitment 
and contribution for another fruitful year. The Agency has 
much to celebrate, and this include the clean Audit outcome.

I am excited to see what 2017/18 Financial year will bring 
for destination Gauteng. 

Mr Khehla Mthembu 
Chairperson of the Board  



14 GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

Board of Directors

 

Khehla Mthembu

Dr. Lulama Zitha

Moroesi Chiloane

Nomusa Mufamadi
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 Happy Ntshingila

 Muditambi Ravele

 
Khusela Sangoni

Puleng Ratlabala
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Siphiwe Ngwenya

Fezile Ngqobe

Nonnie Kubeka

Barba Goaganediwe

Mbuyi Kona

Yaseen Asmal

Sarah Moeketsi
Tinyiko Nkuna 

Executive Management
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW 

Destination Gauteng is one of the most sophisticated, diverse 
Tourist market within the African continent. Ours is to continue 
to tell different stories about destination Gauteng to both local, 
regional and international tourists hence our Vision is “Gauteng 
is Africa’s must see, big-city region experience!”
 
2016/17 was the GTA’s second year for implementing 
programmes in line with its new mandate as a Destination 
Marketing Oganisation (DMO); and another challenging year, 
because Destination marketing is a complex discipline, as it 
requires integrated support from communities involved, relevant 
stakeholders, and government; effective project funding and 
marketing efforts including proper utilisation of the GCR’s 

essential tourism strength and resources.
 

Despite the complexity of destination marketing, 
the GTA deliberated on measurable efforts 
that led to tangible accomplishments as it 
focused on its core competencies in the 

operative of tourism business i.e., destination 
marketing activities at local, regional and 

international platforms, such as destination 
promotions, visitor services; and bidding for and 

hosting of events.
 

It is my pleasure to state that the Agency implemented its 
Annual Performance Plan as approved by the Board, with 

recorded performance of 93.3.  We continued to implement 
destination marketing promotions through content marketing, 

township and urban tourism promotion drives, #GPLifestyle and 
media outlets, commentators, key influences. We focused on 
domestic, BRICS, SADC and other international platforms. 
 
In line with the Township Economic Revitalisation agenda, the 
GTA refocused its services towards township businesses, by 
giving opportunities to township SMMEs to showcase their 
tourism businesses in the domestic and SADC platforms, thus 
mainstreaming township economy into the provincial economy 
that is inclusive. 

Fifty Business and eighteen entertainment events were supported 
by the GTA and generated more than one billion five-hundred 
and ninety-four-million-rand value into the province. This 
demonstrated successful marketing strategies and the increase 
in the number of visitor’s participants in the Events business.
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A Visitor Services business unit was formed to implement 
programmes on tourism information services that involves 
distributing and sharing tourism information through VICs, 
exhibitions and other platforms, and Tourism Safety.

During the year under review, the entity faced challenges as a 
result of budget cuts from the Shareholder, this put significant 
pressure on the entity to implement projects, having said that 
the entity has achieved a majority of the targets.

Capacity constraints and challenges facing the 
public entity  
The limited budget received by the entity is a constraint for 
the entity to fully achieve its Vision as “Gauteng is Africa’s 
must see, big city region experience!”

Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued

There were no activities discontinued or to be discontinued 

New or proposed activities
There are no new or proposed activities

Requests for roll over of funds
The entity received approval from Provincial Treasury 
amounting to R33 433 563 for the 2015/16 Financial 
year. An application has been made for the 2016/17 
financial year and has not yet been approved.

Supply chain management
Supply chain systems and procedures were in place to 
prevent irregular expenditure. Where in exceptional cases, 
irregular expenses occur, systems were in place to identify 
and report on these. During the current financial year the 
entity appointed a Supply Chain Manager (SCM) Manager.

General Review of the state of financial affairs
The financial statements reflect the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2017 and the results of its

operations for the year then ended are summarised as follows: Actual Budget Deviation

R’000 R’000 %

Income:                          Provincial Grant - GTA 63,494 63,494 0.0%

                                     Provincial Grant - GTA - Additional 32,634 32,634 0.0%

                                     GTA Other Income incl. Registration Fees - - 0.0%

                                     Interest received 3,693 2,872 28.6%

99,822 99,000 0.8%

Expenditure per business unit:            
                                     Visitor Information Services       

  14,143 14,143 0.0%

                                     Business and Leisure Events 25,137 24,978 0.6%

                                     Destination Marketing 27,077 17,304 5.6%

                                     Strategic Management, Governance and Administration 43,798 41,466 6.6%

                                     Sub Total:  Operational cost 110,155 97,890 12.5%

                                     Capital expenditure 1,570 1,110 41.4%

                                     Total expenditure 111,724 99,000 12.9%

                                     Surplus/(Deficit) for the year including Capital Expenditure (11,902) - -

                                     Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year excluding Capital Expenditure (10,332) - -

The total expenditure of R111, 724,414, is R12, 724, 252 more than budgeted and indicates an overspend of 12.9% percent. The net loss for the 
year, excluding Capital Expenditure of R1, 569,883 is R10, 332,394. The Authority also has contractual commitments of R11, 405, 049 that will be 
dealt with in the 2017/18 financial year.  The Authority will therefore in terms of TR Section 53(3) of the PFMA, request approval to retain the surplus 
for the 2016/17 financial year as this will ensure that all commitments as at Statement of Financial Position date be dealt with.
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All concluded unsolicited bid proposals for the 
year under review

The entity is not a revenue generating organisation.

SCM processes and systems
The Gauteng Tourism Authority (referred hereinafter as the 
GTA or the Agency) has an approved SCM policy and 
procedure manual in place. 

Challenges experienced 
Some suppliers were not registered on the Central Supplier 
Database (CSD). The  Agency supported them by providing 
guidance on how to register on CSD, which allowed them to 
do business with Government.

Audit report matters in the previous year and how 
would be addressed
The Agency achieved a clean audit opinion in the previous 
financial year.

Outlook/Plans for the future to address financial 
challenges
The Entity is fully funded by the Department of economic 
Development.

Events after the reporting date
There will be no events to affect reports after the reporting 
date that will require reporting.

Economic Viability 
The entity is not a revenue generating entity. 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation 
I thank the MEC and the Board for the valuable contribution 
in making this possible, and the members of the staff for 
their efforts in making 2016/17 a year of success.
 

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

___________________ 

Mr Siphiwe Ngwenya 

Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of 
Accuracy for the Annual Report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the 
following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report 
is consistent with the Annual Financial Statements audited by 
the Auditor-General. 

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from 
any omissions. The Annual Report has been prepared in 
accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared 
in accordance with the Genera l l y  Recogn i sed 
Accoun t i ng  P rac t i ce  (GRAP) standards applicable to 
the public entity.

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of 
the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements 

made in this information. The Accounting Authority 
is responsible for establishing, and implementing 
a system of  internal control that has been designed 

to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and 
reliability of the performance information, the human 

resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.

The external auditors were engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, 
the performance information, the human resources information 
and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2017.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Siphiwe Ngwenya  

___________________ 
Chairperson of the Board
Mr. Khehla Mthembu    
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Strategic Overview 
The GTA adopted a vision and a mission statement, including 
core values, which were approved by the Board of Directors, 
to act as the Agency’s strategic directives. As an aspiration 
to the Agency, the GTA’s vision showcases Gauteng as 
a great African destination that everyone in the world 
should desire to experience. According to the Agency’s 
mission statement, the vision above should be realised 
through the implementation of programmes in the context 
of branding, marketing and promotions, bidding for and 
hosting, and visitor services. The GTA centred its core 
values on Passion and Innovation, Professionalism and 
Excellence, Transformation and Sustainability, Commitment 
to progressive Corporate Governance, Integrity and Ethical 
Business Practices, and Collaboration and Partnership. These 
values are the key influencers on how the members of the 
Agency should conduct themselves when providing services 
to the public. As extracted from the GTA’s APP-2016/17, the 
strategic directives above are detailed below as follows: 

Vision 

“Gauteng is Africa’s must see, big-city region experience!”

Mission

“To effectively, efficiently, and professionally grow the visitor 
economy and enhance visitor’s experienced by:” 

•   Branding, marketing and promoting tourism in Gauteng;

•   Bidding for, and hosting mega, major, significant, local     
     and community events; and

•   Providing and managing visitor information services     
 to leverage tourism for inclusive socio-economic   
 development.

Values

The values of the GTA are in line with the Batho Pele principles. 
The rationale for aligning the values with the principles 
above, is that the Batho Pele principles are government-wide 
values designed at influencing government Departments and 
their entities in delivering services to the public in line with 
the principles of the Constitution of South Africa. During the 
year under review, the GTA was influenced by the following 
values: 

Passion and Innovation
•	 Strive for continuous improvement of efficiency and results.  

  

•   Knowledge of the external/internal environment

•	 Strive for optimisation of all resources

•	 Be part of the solution and not the problem

•	 Be the front runner

•	 Be an activist for socio-economic justice

•	 Be creative

•	 Take initiative and act proactively to prevent crisis

•  Revise current practices and procedures and come up 
with the meaningful suggestions

•  Implement procedures for effective inter-role 
accountability

•  Challenge the status quo

•  Be a catalyst for change

•  Focus on the environment and look at new ideas for 
empowerment

•  Creative ideas on how to break down the silos

Professionalism and Excellence
•  Keeping the industry informed

•  Changing mind sets

•  Modelling the way

•  Creating an enabling and challenging environment

•  Sensitivity to the environment

•  Plan, organise and control to achieve results effectively 

•  Showing consistency at all times

•  Challenging the hearts and the minds

•  Challenging the status quo

•  Facilitation, coaching, motivating and developing skills

Strong Focus on Transformation and   
Sustainability

•  Ensure alternative approaches to work effectively in 
meeting business and individual needs

•  Actively engage with strategic policy

•  Delivers strategy and delivery plans using evidence-
based best practice

•  Politically aware and identify key players

•  Implement programmes according to the B-BBEE 
scorecard

•  Cultivate healthy business relationships while       
     scrupulously avoiding conflicts of interest.
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Commitment to Progressive Corporate 
Governance
•  Display good manners

•  Comply with all applicable the Gauteng Tourism Authority  
     policy

•  Sound application of corporate governance principles as  
     it applies to the Gauteng Tourism Authority (King III Report)

•  Staying abreast with current legislation and tendencies in 
the external environment

•  Sound knowledge of internal policies/procedures and 
ensuring that they are understood and 

applied correctly at all times

•  Accept accountability 
and responsibility for 

own action and 
performance

Integrity and Ethical Business Practises
•  Honesty in all one’s dealings

•  Consistency in decision-making

•   Impartiality

•    Fairness

•  Advancing the goals/values of the Gauteng Tourism  
     Authority

•  Acting in good faith and in the best interest of the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority

•  Display high level discipline

•  Be reliable and trustworthy in carrying out assignments 
and responsibilities in an impeccable manner

Collaboration and Partnership
•  Building a competent, empowered, high performance 

team committed to an inspired, and shared vision

•  Building an environment conducive to high performance

•  Ensure trust, respect and acceptance

•  Ensure openness and transparency

•  Ensure clarity on role and allocated areas of 
responsibility

•  Alignment of stakeholders to the vision of the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority

•  Positive feedback from stakeholders, which includes staff 
members

•  Empowering people to enable delivery of service 
excellence

•  Prompt delivery of quality service

•  Enthusiastic, and passionate commitment to customers

•  Going the extra mile

•  Showing empathy

•  Caring for stakeholder both internal (staff) and external

Legislative and Other Mandates 

Constitutional mandate
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 
(Act No. 108) outlines the roles and responsibilities of 
government in national, provincial and local spheres, 
providing the basis on which these are regulated in all 
spheres of activity, including tourism.

Legislative mandate 
Tourism Act No. 3 of 2014 provides for the effective 
domestic and international marketing of South Africa as a 
tourist destination; promotion of growth in development of the 
tourism sector; and responsibility of tourism, which seeks to 
generate greater economic benefits for local people and host 
communities.

The Gauteng Tourism Act No. 10 of 2001, section 3 provides 
for the establishment of the GTA. Section 4 of the Act provides 
for powers and duties of the Authority. The Act aims to provide 
for the promotion and sustainable development of tourism in 
Gauteng. The GTA derived its legislative mandate from the 
Act, as amended in 2006. It was anticipated that the Act 
would be revised during 2016/17 financial year. The GDED 
Tourism branch was responsible for the revision process, but 
the process was not concluded as anticipated. The rationale 
for revising this Act was to reflect the specific marketing role 
of the GTA, which was a newly adopted mandate, to include 
other developments such as the implications of the 2014 
National Tourism Act, remove reference to the establishment 
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of the Tourism Development Fund, which has been overtaken 
National Tourism Act, remove reference to the establishment 
of the Tourism Development fund, which has been overtaken 
by the establishment of the Gauteng Enterprise Propeller 
(GEP) as the agency that specialises in Small Medium Micro 
Enterprises (SMME‘s) development, replace the Tourism 
Advisory Committee with the Board of Directors as per the 
2006 amendment of the Act. It is stated above that the 
responsibility for developing tourism policies lie with the 
GDED Tourism branch. However, the GTA was to participate 
in the review and/or the development of policies as and 
when required to do so from the context of destination 
marketing.   

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) No.1 of 1999, 
section 36 provides for the appointment of the Accounting 
Officer. Among others, the Accounting Officer must ensure 
the provision and maintenance of effective, efficient, and 
transparent systems of financial and risk management;  and 
internal control in accordance with sections 13; 29 2 (a)
(b); 38; 39; 40; 41; 42; 43; 44; 45; 46; 47(1) (a); 63; 
64; 65; 81 and 89. According to section 38 (a) (ii) of 
the Act above, a public entity must set a system of 
internal audit, under the control and direction 
of an Audit Committee, complying with and 
operating in accordance with regulations and 
instructions prescribed in terms of sections 76 
and 77.

The Consumer Protection Act No. 68 of 2008 
provides for the promotion of a fair, accessible and 
sustainable marketplace for consumer products and 
services; the establishment of national norms and standards 
to ensure consumer protection; the provision for improved 
standards of consumer information to prohibit certain unfair 
market and business practices; promotion of responsible 
consumer behaviour; and a consistent legislative and 
enforcement framework, related to consumer transactions 
and agreements.

Policy Mandates
The NDP envisions rising employment, productivity and 
income as a way to ensure a long-term solution to achieve 
a reduction in inequality, an improvement in living standards 
and ensuring a dignified existence for all South Africans. 
The NDP recognises tourism as one of the main drivers of 
employment and economic growth.

Relevant Court Rulings 
There were no court ruling that the GTA had to implement 
during the year under review. 

Planned Policy Initiative
It was planned that the Gauteng Tourism Act No. 10 
of 2001 be revised during 2016/17 financial year as 
discussed above. However, the process was not concluded 
as anticipated. The revised act was to give effect of the 
preparation of the policy that precede the Act. 
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Performance Information

PART: B  
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Auditor’s Report: Predetermined 
Objectives

The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA)/auditor currently 
performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance 
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of 
an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance 
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to 
management, with material findings being reported under 
the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements section of the Auditor’s 
Report.

Refer to page 75-78 of the Report of the Auditors Report, 
published as Part E: Financial Information.

Situational Analysis 

Service Delivery Environment 

During the year under review, the GTA continued to implement 
destination marketing promotions by packaging marketing 
and promotions in the context of the following key themes:

•	 Implemented Content Marketing using the Agency’s best 
known and best loved attracting destinations, exhausting 
destinations imagery in communications, promotions 
and messaging;

•  Capitalised on Johannesburg’s high appeal, and entice 
the traveller to products and experiences beyond 
the city, thematically covering the five (5) regions or 
development corridors;

•  Township and Urban Tourism promotion drive as cities, 
spaces and places are now becoming super brands of 
destination marketing. In this regard, the work included 
the promotion of Gauteng’s township tourism products 
and experiences and the market access programme for 
SMME’s;

•  Implemented Global Media Relations programme, 
which included the hosting of visiting journalists, 
influencers, bloggers and domestic media to influence 
editorial content that encourages travel and contributes 
towards increased visitation to the city region; and

• #GPLifestyle promotions drive was implemented. 
#GPLifestyle made the core of the Agency’s marketing 
efforts during the year under review. It guided 
events promotions drives, showcased lifestyle, sporting, 
adventure and entertainment events with the purpose of 
using these events to generate editorial content that strive 
to increase visitation to the destination.

The GTA set itself towards increasing organisational targets 
by focusing on telling Gauteng’s tourism story through 
domestic and international editorial coverage with relevant 
targeted media outlets, commentators and influencers. The 
Agency took advantage on the fact that media promotions 
are an excellent way to increase awareness of and interest 
in destination Gauteng and helps to acquire significant print, 
web, social media and television/video exposure that 
the Agency would not be able to afford to purchase 
through the available advertising budgets; and worked with 
a huge number of domestic and local media in showcasing 
township 
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tourism; and provided the content to these important 
community platforms that not only sell tourism, but improve 
the quality of the media houses programmes and content. In 
short, destination marketing focused on the following areas: 

•  Improving marketing of attractions and products across 
different multi-media channels;

•	 Implementing several joint marketing initiatives with key 
strategic and tactical partners in marketing destination 
Gauteng;

•  Rolling out dedicated and sector-based marketing 
campaigns;

•  Initiating marketing activities in Africa as part of the 
Transformation, Modernisation, and Re-industrialisation 
(TMR) objectives;

•  Promoting destination Gauteng in key BRICS (Brazil, 
Russia, India, China, South Africa) markets; and 

•  Providing market access to township based enterprises 
and youth owned tourism establishments.

Accordingly, the GTA also used an integrated dedicated 
promotion drive for township experiences and products, 
inclusive of neighbourhoods with a dedicated marketing 
campaign to the Southern African Development Community 
(SADC) region. The Agency showcased township SMME’s 
to bread and butter markets of Botswana, Mozambique and 
Kenya. This was to give effect to transformation agenda in 
order to mainstream the township economy into the provincial 
economy that is integrated, inclusive, growing, and creating 
sustainable livelihoods. 

The Agency implemented a strategic objective on crafting 
and implementing a Global Media Relations Programme, 
which integrated media relations activities within consumer, 
business events and trade platforms, and included an even 
greater focus on influencers for both online and social media 
outlets. Consistent with this approach, the Agency continued 
doing work that raised the profile of tourism and the visitor 
economy in general, in the province amongst local residence. 
Furthermore, the Agency implemented the strategy planned 
at inculcating the need for respect for visitors into Gauteng. 
The Agency’s Public Relations (PR) messaging, focused on 
encouraging locals to be tourists in their own backyard, 
encouraging international and regional visitors to step out 
and stay another day in Gauteng, and for trade partners to 
take advantage of Gauteng’s ever increasing arsenal of leisure 

and business tourism attractions; and helped 
in packaging offerings accordingly. 
The focus on direct 
consumer marketing 
was messaging 
with the GTA’s 
participation in 
various leisure and 
consumer shows. 

The Agency supported 
marketing efforts for the 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Site (CoHWHS), 
Dinokeng project, and other 
tourism hubs. 

For the year under review, the 
Agency set itself towards achieving a 
heightened awareness and improvement
in the consumption and usage of domestic tourism 
products in the province through the use of evidence based 
marketing and PR strategies. Similarly, local events were 
used to leverage the media and PR opportunities associated 
with these events and expanded the destination marketing 
and communications capabilities over the practice of digital 
technology to engage, attract and retain unique visitors 
through the implementation of various digital campaigns 
and search engine optimisation work. In that regard, the 
Agency managed to position its digital assets as one of 
the leading social and digital channels in the travel and 
tourism space in the country. The GTA reached a milestone 
of hundred thousand (100 000) twitter followers towards 
the end of the financial year under review, and improved 
considerably its Facebook and Instagram followers. 
The GTA’s travel guide continued to make waves in both 
google play and apple stores. Working together with 
travel booking engine WAYN.com, the Agency undertook a 
dedicated marketing campaign to BRICS member countries, 
mainly, China and Brazil. Opportunities were galore in the 
online media space with bloggers, instagrammers and 
other social media platforms proving the best way of selling 
destination offerings. The GTA hopes to continue nourishing 
its relationship with the South African Tourism (SAT) Global 
Comms, the GDED Communications and Media unit, 
other leading DMOs, and chain products like Tsogo Sun, 
Westcliff Hotel, Vaal River City, Maropeng, Maboneng, etc. 

The GTA continued to promote the prosperity of Gauteng’s 
MICE sector by developing and implementing a 
Bidding and Hosting strategy that is aligned with Gauteng’s 
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priority sectors, i.e., financial, manufacturing, technology, 
engineering, transport logistics, sports, and education, 
which was approved by the Provincial Executive Committee. 
This strategy contributes towards the province’s current 
priority programme, i.e.,TMR, thereby focusing on attracting 
major business and other events to Gauteng.

In line with the province’s Bidding and Hosting Strategy, the 
GTA focused on driving the growth of the industry through 
key strategic approaches, i.e., the win, promote, and 
Develop strategies propelled by strategic collaboration 
between the Agency, private and public sector organisations, 
including well-respected industry partners. 

A significant growth in the Gauteng business events sector 
was recorded during the year under review, where more 
than one hunded and twenty thousand (120 000) overseas 
and eighty four thousand (84000) regional and domestic 
MICE visitors participated in the events, generating about 
R1,6 billion in MICE revenue.  Europe was the largest 
source of MICE visitors, followed by Africa, and then 
Asia. The MICE industry of Gauteng contributed to the 
province’s economy in terms of international visitors and 
generated revenue. Top source markets for MICE visitors 
included Africa, Europe, Asia and the Americas in line with 
the global economy. The conventions industry posted top 
market shares followed by events, and exhibitions.

The Gauteng tourism sector continued to inject greater 
influence over the business events sub-sector through the 
GTA. Business events, by its very nature and professional 
operational setting, is less dependent on the availability of 
disposable income than it is the case with leisure tourism. 
The attendant multiplier effect associated with business 
events results in greater spend levels than may be achieved 
in the leisure market, thus creating a more resilient and 
durable environment. Such intensive focus on this conference 
and events-based sub-sector, coupled with the private sector’s 
recognition of the importance of business events, paid 
dividends and contributed to the generated rand value above.

According to the GTA’s 2016/17 APP targets for Bidding and 
Hosting, the Agency planned to support 50 MICE and 
18 entertainment events, and all targets were achieved.  
Eleven (11) bid proposals were submitted for international 
events; of this number, five (5) were successfully converted 
into actual events, with a further ten (10) pending a decision 
with regard to awarding them to Gauteng. Critically, the 
GTA ‘s proliferation of proposal submissions for national 
and international events has appreciably raised awareness 
about Gauteng as a conferencing and events destination. 

Much groundwork has been completed in developing 
relationships with buyers in the lucrative conventions market 
segment. The Agency delivered six  (6) bid presentations 
during the year under review, securing five (5 )events, namely 
WCG2018, the International Association of Gaming 
Regulators (IAGR) BID 2017, UFI 2017, SIM2018, a nd 
PAMA 2018. The remaining event i.e., the 2022 World 
Congress of International Constitutional Law – was pending 
and could still be awarded to Gauteng. 

The GTA invests significant time, effort and resources to 
organising and hosting site inspections for assisting potential 
clients in deciding on bringing their events to Gauteng. 
During the year under review, a total of fifteen (15) site 
inspections were organised and professionally completed. 
The success of these inspections had a direct bearing on 
five (5) secured events, which are predestined to attract 
some three thousand and one hundred (3100) delegates 
and generate an economic impact in the order of sixty five 
million rand (R65 million). In an effort to secure potential 
leads for future business events and to identify new bidding 
opportunities, the GTA actively participated in three (3) key 
trade shows and workshops, resulting in between twenty five 
to thirty (25-30) one-on-one appointments being made at 
these events and five requests for bid  event proposals. New 
leads representing one hundred and sixty thousand (160 
000) delegates were identified and researched for their 
future potential to bid for and host in Gauteng, and from 
these, international leads representing ninety five thosand 
(95,000) delegates and national leads representing sixty five 
thousand (65,000) delegates were developed to bid stage.

In February 2017, the GTA continued to benefit from its 
partnership with the South African Tourism National Convention 
Bureau Alliance by hosting Meetings Africa 2017, where 
two hundred and forty three (243) international and regional 
qualified buyer delegates from thirty seven (37) countries, 
sixty five (65) African Association buyer delegates from ten 
(10) countries, one thousand, three hundred and ninety five 
(1395) visitor delegates and two hundred and ninety six (296) 
exhibitors, and one hundred and ninety nine (199) media 
journalists were hosted. 

The GTA intensified events activation for securing both local and 
international conferences i.e., significant and longstanding sports 
events, which attracted national and international participants 
and their entourages. This included the Sunshine Tours Premier 
Golf Tournament event, the Arnold Africa Classic and Future 
Championships. Most encouragingly, sports enthusiasts flocked 
in increasing numbers to Gauteng to participate in or support 
these stalwart events year in and year out. 
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During the year under review, Gauteng witnessed regional 
township music concerts attracting thousands of music 
enthusiasts from far and wide to Gauteng townships. While it 
is true that tourists coming to Gauteng are attracted to major 
centres and attractions, such as Sandton and its shopping. 
The importance of events being staged in other areas is 
that local events can drive tourists to less visited areas of 
the province. This goes a long way towards expanding the 
geographic spread of tourism in Gauteng to the benefit of 
greater numbers of its people. 

The objective of the GTA’s Bidding and Hosting is to continue 
growing the reach of tourism in the Gauteng City Region 
(GCR), thereby bringing more players into the sector, and 
widening the overall tourist offering. Gauteng is grateful that 
Johannesburg is also playing host to an increasing number of 
events, such as the Standard Bank Joy of Jazz, Delicious Food 
Festival, Gauteng Sansui Summercup, and the Randshow. 

The poor provincial visibility in co-ordinating a seamless 
tourism information provisioning was a challenge during the 
first quarter of the year under review. Some of the information 
provided by some tourism products was not quality assured. 
As a result, some of the tourists fell into the trap of unscrupulous 
product business owners. The problem was that owners on 
their own accord could easily advertise products either through 
different channels and websites without necessarily following 
the required minimum standards of service excellence. Efforts 
to try and manage this challenge have already started, which 
included establishing a reliable provincial shared data-base. 
The primary goal is to engage regional and local tourism 
Associations to find ways for routing out bad behaviours in 
line with reputable business ethics and values. 

Another intervention employed by the Agency was to 
strengthen efforts for increasing demand for tourism information 
throughout the destination. This was made possible through 
several platforms created through the Tourism Mobile VIC, 
which ensured that tourism information and opportunities is 
brought closer to where people are i.e. through community 
tourism roadshows and exhibitions. The Tourism Mobile VIC 
was used as a primary tool for township tourism information 
awareness. Towards the end of the second quarter of the year 
under review, it started to yield positive results, reflecting an 
increased demand by all tourism key stakeholders, including 
public institutions.

Tourism Safety incidents continued to besiege the Gauteng 
Province destination for the duration of the 2016/17 
financial year, due to a lack of integrated efforts between 
the private and government sectors. Some joint operational 
initiatives have started.

The South African Police Services (SAPS), through their 
crime intelligence put efforts in ensuring that the country and 
the Gauteng destination province is a safer place for visitors. 
This was implemented in collaboration with the stakeholder 
safety cluster, including the Department of Home Affairs. 

Service Delivery improvement 

During the year under review, The GTA took service delivery 
improvement considerably by implementing Service Delivery 
Improvement Plan (SDIP), which reflected performance 
measures that illustrated the Agency’s efforts towards 
improving the means of providing services to the public. 
Note: that these measures were not included in the Agency’s 
APP 2016/17. 

The improvement plan is in line with the Public Service 
Regulations and the GTA’s core values. In striving to measure 
improvement in service delivery, the GTA focused on 
the following performance areas that narrate Stakeholder 
Engagement, Information Services, Tourist Support 
programme, Travel Trade strategy, Events Support Evaluation 
system, Community events, GTA’s Website, Social Media 
services, and Township Economic Revitalisation (TER). The 
foundations of these performance areas are discussed 
below as follows: 

Stakeholder engagement – The Gauteng Tourism Authority 
institutionalised stakeholder management as a service 
delivery and good governance mechanism. Currently, the 
stakeholder business unit sits in the Office of the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) to drive its stakeholder engagements. 
The stakeholder unit aims to have a coordinated stakeholder 
approach through the approved proposed operating 
model that will ensure that the stakeholder management 
unit is repositioned and has the necessary financial 
and Human Resources (HR) to support critical stakeholder 
and citizen engagement. The Stakeholder unit through the 
Office of the CEO aims to develop common communication 
standards of engaging with the stakeholders. This will include 
providing a reliable, approachable and an effective 
service. The following are currently being implemented:

•  Assess the relevant channels of communications and 
apply them to targeted stakeholders.

•   Develop a complaints and feedback procedure.

•  Open processes of engagement.

•  Recognise the interdependence of stakeholder efforts
 and benefits.

•  Acknowledge and monitor concerns of stakeholders. 
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The aim is to develop common communication standards of 
engagements with all stakeholders. It is also to provide clear 
and regular updates with regards to information and ensure 
it is accessible to stakeholders. 

Stakeholder engagement allows active involvement of 
various stakeholders including citizens in matters of policy 
development and service delivery. Issues on stakeholder 
engagement are a critical requirement in the development of 
institutions such as the GTA. Stakeholder engagements deepen 
service delivery and policy development approaches, which 
in turn contribute significantly towards sustainable service 
delivery.

Information Services–The purpose of the Information 
Services programme is to facilitate high quality tourism 
information on Gauteng services, products and amenities. 
This is achieved through several projects that targets various 
audiences with the aim to expose and encourage tourism 
travel, through:

•  Destination tourism products/ experience information 
services,

•  Tourism SMME awareness workshops;

•  Tourism awareness youth workshops;

•  Tourism exhibitions;

•  Tourism awareness roadshows; and

•  Tourism youth initiatives, including career options.

Tourist Support programme – The purpose of this 
programme is to facilitate assistance and support to tourists 
who are in distress and this is done through the following key 
pillars, focusing on both preventative and reactive measures:

•  Establish and implement appropriate mechanisms which 
enhance the impact of a collective approach to tourist 
incidents;

•  Develop and implement tourism support preventative and 
communication programmes; and

•  Facilitate an integrated stakeholder engagement 
partnership approach to tourism safety awareness and 
Tourism Support known as the post incident After Care 
Programme.

Travel trade strategy – the GTA works with travel trade 
to determine the selection, packaging and market access, 
readiness of tourism products; followed by aggressive 
marketing of these to tourism trade through a variety of 

marketing and sales initiatives. The tour operators, agents and 
other sales channels are critical to the success of the tourism 
marketing initiatives. Travel professionals who understand the 
Gauteng experiences and products achieve greater success 
in selling destination Gauteng to their customers.  The travel 
and reservation agents, and consumer-direct tour operators 
recognise and influence Gauteng’s target customers and 
deliver the brand message to close sales deals on Gauteng 
programmes. The Gauteng tourism trade and partnerships 
relations team influence operators on how to modify their 
existing product or how to communicate key motivators within 
the context of the product that will mostly resonate with their 
specific target market.

Events support evaluation system – The Bidding and 
Hosting of events is an integral part of the Province‘s plan 
to radically transform and modernise the Gauteng economy. 
The GTA’s events portfolio contributes to the province towards 
realising the TMR impacts that positively influence the lives 
of Gautengers. Up until 2016, the funding and support of 
events in the province had largely been dependent on ad 
hoc proposal received from service providers, with very 
poor investment levels. Before 2015, decision-making about 
support for events had been subject to lobbying, often based 
on unclear systems and characterised by public sector lack 
of alignment. In implementing the Bidding and Hosting 
strategy, a call for proposals was done in November 2016 
with a January 2017 closing date for submissions. This was 
intended at sharpening and refocusing government’s ongoing 
involvement in facilitating, leveraging and providing strategic 
direction for a more coordinated, comprehensive approach, 
and a balanced portfolio of events. It was also to ensure that 
government determines return on investment from the support 
provided, especially financial support, as well as to show-
case Gauteng as the preferred home of competitive sport, 
culture, champions and facilitation assistance.

Community events – During the year under review, the GTA 
implemented Regional Outreach Programmes and conducted 
regional workshops with event planners and organisers to 
capacitate them and improve their events organising skills. The 
findings were that community/township based events were 
not well coordinated and as such, no tangible activities were 
implemented in line with this programme in previous years. 
As discussed above, the GTA opened a Request for Events 
Proposals (RFP) in November 2016 so that all event organisers 
can have an equal opportunities to submit proposals. Taken 
into consideration are township-based community events that 
can be incubated into significant events.
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This process provided a guide to decision-making for 
supporting township-based community events and aided 
provincial and local government to work co-operatively and 
maximise the brand building potential, as well as economic, 
social and environmental benefits that can be realised from 
hosted events. It incorporated a range of actions to be 
implemented that not only maintain, develop and expand 
events, but improve engagement between the stakeholders 
delivering and hosting events. Target outcomes of the 
township-based community events include:

•  Expanding Gauteng ’s visitor economy in townships;

•  Growing visitor nights in Gauteng regional townships; 
and 

•  Enhancing Gauteng’s liveability in terms of:  

  o  Local attendance;

  o  Local Enjoyment;

  o  Local Pride;

  o  Strengthen the capacity to both bid and host     
      major sporting and cultural events; and 

  o  Increasing national brand awareness and media  
      exposure for Gauteng townships.

The GTA Gauteng.net – The Agency uses its own website 
called Gauteng.net, and social media platforms to implement 
its Digital Marketing Programme. Through the Gauteng.net 
website the Agency promotes various tourist products and 
experiences across the City Region. This Website serves a 
utility tool for product owners and event organisers to spread 
the word about their exciting offerings. 

Social Media services – Complementary to the website, 
the Agency subscribed to solid social media i.e., Twitter, 
Facebook and Instagram. Through these three (3) social 
media platforms, the Agency engages, informs, and inspires 
audiences with the objective of increasing visitor footfall at 
various attractions and experiences across the City Region. 
During the last quarter of the year under review, the Agency’s 
Twitter account achieved a milestone of more than one 
hundred thousand (100 000) followers.

Township Economic Privatisation – The Gauteng province 
adopted a TMR programme. The objective of the TMR 
programme is to confront the persisting reality of poverty, 
unemployment, and inequality, and economic exclusion of 
the majority of the Gauteng population from the mainstream 
economy. 

Townships were identified as the areas that suffer the 
economic downturns. For this reason, the Gauteng province 
adopted TER programme to harmonise the TMR programme. 
A number of approaches were adopted for ensuring that 
the TER becomes a successful programme, and this include 
procuring service and products from the township businesses, 
where targets, using a method similar to preferential 
procurement were set. 

During the year under review, the GTA participated in the 
Premier’s Ntirhisano township visits, providing advice and 
guidance to suppliers on how to conduct business with 
government entities.
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Key Service Beneficiaries Previous achievement/ 
status: 2015/16 and year 

prior 2015/16

Desired service 
standard: 
2016/17

Actual Achievement: 
2016/17

2017/2018

Stakeholder 
engagement  

Public, media, 
private sector, 
academic 
sector, 
international 
bodies, non-
governmental 
organisations 

•	 Lack	of	approved	strategy.	

•	 Stakeholder	engagement	
implemented haphazardly 
from different Business 
Units.  

•	 Failure	to	engage	strategic	
partners. 

Formal engagement 
with strategic 
partners.

•	 Integrated	Stakeholder	
Engagement Strategy 
approved. 

•	 Stakeholder	engagement	
implemented haphazardly 
from different Business Units.

•	 Informally	engaged	(in	the	
form of partnership) with 
some organisations, i.e., 
Airport Company South 
Africa (ACSA), Tsogo 
Sun international, Soico 
(Mozambican Media 
Company).

•	 Strategy	
implementation plan 
developed 

•	 Implementation	of	a	
strategy commenced 
in line with the 
implementation plan:

    -  Key stakeholder 
    -  Identified
    -  Engaged 
    -  Relationship  
       formalised

Information 
Services 

Regions 
Public 

•	 GTA	was	not	active	in	
supporting regions 

•	Single	approach										
(centres) used in providing 
infomation  

•	Different	platforms
for providing
information 
              
      
•	Centres

•	Mobile	VIC

•	 Visitor	Services	Business	
Unit was established 
andInformation Services 
was made a priority to bring 
services to the community. 

•	 Two	additional	centres	
(Cradle Stone Mall and 
124 walk in Centres) were 
serviced.

•	 Mobile	VIC	was	operational.	

•	 Information	services	
provided through 
exhibitions.

•	 Mobile	VIC	project	
implemented. 

•	 Centre	projects	
implemented. 

•	 SMMEs	information	
sharing platforms 
implemented. 

Tourist Support 
programme

Tourist No quick support to tourist in 
distress 

Tourist support 
programme 
implemented  

Implemented Tourism support 
programme:

•	 Informal	stakeholder	
engagement with Tourism 
Business Council of South 
Africa (TBCSA), and 
the following regions: 
Johannesburg, Ekurhuleni, 
Tshwane and, Westrand on 
facilitating safety awareness.

•	 Facilitated	tourist	support	
with TBCSA from reported 
cases. 

 

•	 Formalized	the	
relationships with 
TBCSA

•	 Safety	work-stream	
item included in 
the broader GTA 
stakeholder agreement 
with the regions. 

•	 Partnered	with	
National Department 
of Tourism in Tourist 
Safety Programme

•	 Facilitated100%	
of tourist incidents 
reported cases.

Travel Trade 
Strategy

Private Sector 
Public 
International 
Partners

Lack of strategy 
implementation plan. 

Strategy 
implemented 
according to its 
principles

Reactive approach was used 
•	implemented	projects	

by participating in other 
organisations’ projects.

•	 Strategy	reviewed.
•	 Strategy	

implementation plan 
approved. 

•	 Implementation	of	a	
strategy commenced 
in line with the 
implementation plan.

Lack of engagement with 
regions regarding travel trade 
and product partnership 
opportunities. 

Formal engagement 
with regions.

Informal engagement 
with regions, specifically 
Johannesburg, and Tshwane, 
regarding travel trade 
and product partnership 
opportunities through meetings 
with the following Association: 
Gauteng Tourism Association; 
and Tshwane Tourism 
Association. 

Institutionalised a forum 
for the GTA and regions.
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Key Service Beneficiaries Previous achievement/ 
status: 2015/16 and year 

prior 2015/16

Desired service 
standard: 
2016/17

Actual Achievement: 
2016/17

2017/2018

Events support 
evaluation 
system

Events/ events 
organisers 

Funding and support of 
events in the province had 
largely depended on ad 
hoc proposal received 
from service providers, with 
very poor investment levels 
and last minute piecemeal 
implementation. Before 
2015, decision-making about 
support for events

Support events 
with higher impact 
on number of           
attendees.  

A call for proposal was done 
in November 2016 with a 
January 2017 closing date 
for submissions of proposals, 
intended at sharpening and 
refocusing government’s 
ongoing involvement in 
facilitating, leveraging and 
provide direction for a more 
coordinated, comprehensive 
approach and a balanced 
portfolio of events.

Event impact assessment 
tool utilised as a sole 
system for selecting 
event for support in the 
following approach:
•	 Support	events	that	

meet the requirement 
according to the 
tool.

•	 Help	event	that	
do not meet the 
requirements to 
professionalise the 
events/ businesses.  

Community 
events 

Local events/ 
local events 
organisers 

Community events were not 
well coordinated and as such, 
no tangible activities were 
implemented in line with this 
programme.

Consulted with 
local events         
organisers 

The GTA went out on a 
Regional Outreach Programmes 
and conducted Regional 
workshops with Event 
Organisers to capacitate 
them and improve their events 
organising skills.

Continue with the 
workshops and couple 
them with accredited 
training initiatives for 
provision of certificates.

The GTA 
Gauteng.net

Public

Events/ event’s 
organisers

The GTA website with 
new functionalities and 
optimization was developed

Improved digital 
platform to serve 
as the Agency’s 
instant form of 
communications 
and driver of the 
Agency’s marketing 
efforts.

•	New	GTA	website	launched.
•	Produced	the	digital	

marketing strategy.
•	Created	micro-sites	like	

media and business tourism.

Website page and 
functionality improved.

Social media 
services

Public 

Events/ Events 
organisers 

•	Initiated	intensive	investment	
in social media services. 

•	A	digital	marketing	and	
social media strategy.

The GTA provided 
cutting edge and 
instant social media 
and cyberspace 
communication that 
drives the Agency’s 
programme for 
increasing visitation 
to the City Region.

•	Developed	a	new	website	
and social media platforms

•	Dedicated	management	of	
social media channels 

•	Introduced	a	travel	guide	
app

•		Continued	with	plans	
for including building 
commercialisation 
capabilities using the 
website. 

•	Continued	to	explore	
new social media 
channels like snap 
chart. 

TER Township 
SMMEs

•	The	target	was	12,	the	
GTA achieved 4%.

•	The	list	of	township	was	not	
clear.

The Gauteng 
Provincial 
Government set 
a target of 18% 
Township spend for 
the year.

The target was 18%, the GTA 
achieved 12% procurement 
from Townships suppliers.

The challenges experienced 
because of Township 
suppliers not being compliant 
and unable to provide the 
necessary documents to allow 
procurement processes to 
unfold.

•	28%	target	achieved

•	GTA	included	its	
work-stream to the 
Ntirhisano programme 
to deal with challenges 
encountered. 
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Organisational environment 

The 2016/17 financial year was a challenging year 
in which programmes where tested, having encountered 
serious budget cuts. Given the prevailing economic 
conditions, the GTA recognised the fiscal constraint and 
the delivered services despite fiscal t hese  constraints. 

The Agency set out to overcome funding challenges 
by being creative in its approach to every aspect of 
its tasks, ensuring the achievement of desired outcomes in 
spite of reduced expenditure capabilities, e .g .   developing 
mechanisms to support events through leveraging. 

Since the adoption of the new mandate that solely deliberate 
on destination marketing, the GTA has changed gears 
towards effective and efficient destination marketing in 
Gauteng. The process for reviewing Internal Processes for the 
Agency to be attuned in implementing destination marketing 
projects commenced during the year under review. This 
process above started with the drafting and the adoption 
of the GTA’s DESTINATION MARKETING OPERATING 
MODEL. 

The Operating Model is the visual representation of how the 
Agency delivers value to its customers or beneficiaries. It 
sets t he  stages for more efficient and effective operations 
by bringing operations/functions together, thus exterminate 
redundant activities.  This model contains the overall value 
chain of the GTA’s destination marketing system, presenting 
how each programme fits into the whole functionality of the 
destination marketing system. 

As a second required step for operationalizing the 
operating model above, process maps for each programme 
will be documented/adopted to standardized sub-systems 
for implementing each programme. The purpose of this 
exercise is to invite the environment of high performance, 
where the Agency’s structure, accountabilities, governance, 
culture (behaviours of employees), together with well-suited 
members of staff, processes and technology, all work 
consistently to support the strategic priorities of marketing, 
in the name of growing the visitor economy.

Key policy developments and legislative 
changes   

As discussed above (in the legislative and other mandates), 
during the year under review, the Gauteng Tourism Act was 
in the processes of assessment, for the Act to provide for the
Agency’s new strategic focus, as a DMO.
 

Strategic Outcome-Oriented Goals

As a statutory reform from the period of apartheid to 
the democratic era, the Constitution of the Republic of 
South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of 1996) paved a way for 
change and transformation in the spheres of government, thus 
affecting administration functional fields, and consequently, 
repositioned the significance of policy and decision-making 
towards service delivery. The Constitution declares a number 
of rules that cause-effect change/transformation in the 
provision of services to the public, for example,  Chapter 
10, section 195 declares that public administrations must be 
governed by the democratic values and principles enshrined 
in the Constitution, including amongst other principles, 
accountability of public administration; and Chapter 13, 
section 215 declares that Provincial budgets and budgetary 
processes must promote transparency, accountability and the 
effective financial management of the economy, debt and the 
public sector. The transformation p r o c e s s  unfolded from 
1994 to date, with the staging of new and reformulation 
of different legislations, thus allowing effective change. 
Transformation in public institutions is a very complex strategy, 
because it is intended at changing a number of areas, i.e., 
belief, attitudes, values, administrations, and functions so that 
it is possible for structures to adjust to new ways of delivering 
services. 

The evolution above –change and transformation predestined 
that government organisations deliver service in line 
with the democratic principles. The GDED adopted 
democratic principles above with the implementation of 
relevant government-wide legislations and the tailoring of 
these legislations for compatibility with the mandate of the 
Department. Many of the Department’s legislations were 
extended to the GTA per their relevancy, with the tailoring 
of the Department and government-wide legislations for 
compatibility with the Agency’s mandate. 

Despite the issue of legal requirements in delivery of services 
discussed above, government organisations must also deliver 
services in line with government priorities and approaches 
in order to improve service delivery. The Presidency 
started the process of developing a Government-Wide 
Monitoring and Evaluation Framework in 2004, aimed 
at improving government performance and the results 
are crowned in the Framework for Managing Programme 
Performance Information (FMPPI] 2007) and Framework 
or Strategic Plans and Annual Performance Plans (2010). 
Result-Based Management, as provided in the FMPPI aimed 
at moving government from measuring activities, towards 
reflecting on the outputs needed to realise outcomes. The 
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government started to outline Outcome approach in 2010 
with twe l v e  ( 12) outcomes to be delivered over the MTSF 
period. In 2014, the Outcomes were revised, and two (2) 
were added and all to be implemented per government 
cluster, where executive authorities hold membership. In 
order to ensure that the Outcome-Based approach bear fruits, 
Executive Authorities sign off Performance Agreements with 
the President/ Premier. 

The primary outcome for the GDED is Outcome 4. Outcome 4 
is declared in the Medium-Term Strategic Framework (MTSF)  
2014 - 2019 as “Decent Employment, through Inclusive 
Growth. The GTA is an implementing agency for the GDED. 
Correspondingly, to the Agency’s relationship with the GDED, 
the primary outcome for the GTA is also Outcome 4, which 
is an umbrella to all economic outputs or sectors and these 
include tourism sector, which is the core mandate of the GTA. 

Like the GDED has been adjusting strategic planning 
approaches in the past few years, the GTA has also 
been striving to plan and implement projects using t h e 
government strategic planning framework, with the GTA 
preparing its Strategic Plans, Annual Performance Plans and 
performance reports through the involvement of oversight 
bodies, i.e., GDED, Treasury and AGSA, where each 
body play a role in checking if the plans and reports 
were prepare in line with the government-wide strategic 
planning, monitoring and evaluation reporting  frameworks, 
including alignment to the current priorities. The GTAs Annual 
Performance Plan -2016/17, which is the foundation for this 
Annual Report-2016/17, was prepared per the principles 
above.

All government organisations are expected to plan and deliver 
services in line with the current priorities, which are hallowed in 
the government-wide adopted plan, i.e., NDP, which,  
envisions the rising of employment, productivity and incomes 
rate as a way to ensure a long term solution to achieve a 
reduction in inequality, an improvement in living standards, 
and ensuring a dignified existence for all South Africans. 
The NDP recognizes tourism as one of the main drivers 
of employment and economic growth, with a focus on the 
following priorities: 

•  Eliminate poverty and reduce inequality;

•  Faster growth and more inclusive growth;

• Effective partnerships across society, rising investment, 
employment, and productivity, and generating incomes;

• Capable and developmental state that is able to act to 
redress historical inequities;

• South Africa’s foreign policy must be shaped by the interplay 
between diplomatic, political, security, environmental, 
economic and regional co-operative dynamics; and 

•		 South Africa should improve collaboration and co-
operation, through deeper integration and increased 
trade with its regional trade partners in Africa, and 
the global, and emphasis should be placed on the role 
that South Africa can play in mediating the role and 
influence of the BRICS group and African countries. 

Apart  from  the NDP  priorities  mentioned  above, there 
are other priorities treasured in the NDP that serve the 
administration context of government organisations. 
However, the GTA centred its programmes on the 
NDP priorities that is above as they talk to the Agency’s 
core mandate. The GTA’s focus on the NDP is demonstrated 
below through  the  Agency’s careful designed and adopted 
Strategic Outcome-Oriented Goals, and delivery of projects 
in line with these Strategic Outcome-Oriented Goals, as 
follows:
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Strategic Outcome-Orient ed 
Goal

Goal Statement            Performance in line with the Strategic-Outcome Oriented 

Goal 1: Gauteng is the 
destination of choice for an 
African world class must see 
big city re gion experience.

During the 2016/17 Financial year, the GTA imple mented 
the following programmes: 

Attraction based marketing and promotions; 

•  Dedicated destination campaigns; 

•  Joint-marketing initiatives; 

•  Township based SMMEs, and youth township-based

 SMMEs promotions through the market access 
programme;  and 

•  Destination promotions conducted in African, and BRICS 
 markets platforms.

 These programmes are different promotion al activities, but 
share a strategic objective, which was to bring people/
tourists into the tourism business, working with different 
stakehold ers in the tourism industry to inform both 

   local and international tourists about destination Gauteng, 
and influence their judgements about different attractions in 
Gauteng. 

   Through the implementation of the Market Access 
Programme, the GTA provided SMMEs with opportu nities 
to meet potential local and international busi nesses to learn 
and possibly partner with them, and exhibit their tourism 
offering to local and international platforms. 

 As a support system to the tourism industry, the GTA 
implemented Tourism Services, thereby providing 

 tourism information to different stakeholders of the 
 tourism industry, including people/tourists in gen eral. 

Through this programme, the GTA responded to the 
opponent of the tourism industry, i.e., crime, by providing 
support to tourists who experienced the hand of crime in 
Gauteng. 

 The successful implementation and the outcomes of the 
programmes directly impact the on  Goal 1, which is 
centred at growing the visitor’s economy of Gauteng.

This goal is intended at growing visitor’s economy, 
thereby positioning Gauteng as a tourism 
destination of choice in South Africa and Africa. 

The GTA implement programmes on local and 
global marketing of Gauteng’s tourism offerings and 
expe riences that are owned and managed by the 
pub lic and private sectors. Marketing messages and 
themes were used to respond to visitor’s needs and 
promote quality visitor experiences such as quality 
of infrastructure, unique and globally competitive 
products and experiences, service excellence, 
sustainable tourism practices and visitor safety 
and recourse. All GTA’s marketing and promotion 
interventions are research and evidence-based; 
utilised new tools and technology and cutting edge 
multimedia marketing to keep Gauteng front-of-mind, 
predestined at:

•  Increasing demand for Gauteng’s visitor 

  econo my 

•  Attracting first time and repeat visitors 

•  Developing a niche market approach, offering 

  unique experiences such as destinations and  
themes

•  Stimulating new markets, grow overall market  
share and increase Gauteng’s share of South  
Africa’s visitor market, focusing on priority 
audi ences

•  Ensuring domestic tourism in Gauteng is a 

   vi brant and profitable part of the provincial  
tour ism industry

•  Ensuring industry alignment to ensure that all      
functions of the organisations work towards the 

       same strategic goals and communicating   
       under a single, strong brand. 

Gauteng remained an institution for providing  
accu rate and valuable visitor information  
services, includ ing at the level of safety and the  
recourse available for any safety infringements that 
may be experienced. 

Through this goal the Agency implements its four 
core functions, which are predestined at:

•  Increasing the number of local and global 
tour ists that visit Gauteng; Growing the tourism 
sec tor in general; 

•  Growing and the development of township 
tourist enterprises; and

•  Increasing safety and security of visitors



40 GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

Strategic Outcome-Orient-
ed Goal

Goal Statement Performance in line with the Strategic-Outcome 
Oriented Goal

Goal 2: Gauteng is the 
destination of choice for 
business and leisure events.

This goal is intended at positioning Gauteng as 
a venue of choice for mega, major significant, local 
and community business and leisure events, thereby 
engaging in Bidding and Hosting events.
  
The focus is on the province’s unique selling points 
as an events destination, such as Gauteng being 
Africa’s economic hub and South Africa’s political 
hub and having an established and sustainable 
lo cal event industry, a large number of good quality 
event related infrastructure and services, the ability 
to absorb large and numerous events and a diverse 
population of possible attendees at events.

Achievement of this goal ideally contributes to an 
in crease in tourism volumes and in tourism spend, 
an increase in visitor’s length of stay, improve 
geograph ical spread, development and growth of 
local enter prises involved in the events industry, and 
improved visitation seasonal patterns.

It is envisaged that in addition to bidding for, and 
hosting existing events, Gauteng devel oped its own 
events, making use of provincial strengths in sport, 
culture and heritage and the creative industries and 
building on the prov ince’s ‘brand’ as a vibrant, big 
city experience. Gauteng’s events appealed to the 
diverse needs of the local population as well as 
those of overseas African and domestic visitors.

Goal 2 is centred at positioning Gauteng as a destination of 
choice for both business and leisure events. During the year 
under review, the GTA supported events/event organisers 
through the following programmes, bidding for events, and 
providing both financial and non-financial support to events/ 
events organisers. 

The events support programme has a direct impact to the 
goal above. Through the hosting of events, people/ tourists 
travelled for leisure, entertainment and business purposes as 
they attend ed conferences, workshops and other gatherings, 
thus contribut ing to the growth of the destination Gauteng. 

Through events, the GTA measured the economic benefit 
of events using two variables: i.e., rand value, and jobs 
created. However, the job created variable was measured 
from the op erational plan. 

Nonetheless, as a niche market of the tourism sector, events 
contributed to the economic growth of the GCR in terms of 
rand value generated, labour market and through goods 
supply and provision of services. SMMEs were supported, 
jobs were created and infrastructures were improved, thus 
stimulating so cial-upliftment.

Goal 3: GTA is managed 
and governed efficiently and 
effec tively.

This goal was intended at providing strategic 
support to the core programmes thereby 
implementing the fol lowing programmes: 

•  Company secretarial services;

•  Stakeholder relations;

•  Financial management;

•  Corporate services;

•  Information communication technologies;

•  Human capital management; and 

•  Strategic business support.

The quality standards of the services that the GTA 
provides as the DMO depends on the excellence of the 
back-office, which is the backbone of any winning 
organisa tion. As the back-office, Programme: Administration 
strived to manage and govern the GTA effectively, and 
efficiently. 

The management and the governance of the GTA are the 
central concerns of Goal 3. Through administration, the 
activities of the Board and its committees were implemented 
as planned; stake holders were engaged; Human Resource, 
Information Commu nication and Technology, and financial 
management services, including strategic business support 
were provided, all in the name of supporting the Agency’s 
core businesses.  
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Performance Information by          
Programme/ Activity/ Objective

Programme 1: Administration 

The purpose of the programme

To provide strategic leadership, support and transversal 
business solutions to enable the GTA’s Board of Directors 
(referred hereinafter as the Board), CEO and all members 
of staff to effectively deliver on the mandate of the 
organisation.

Sub-programmes 

• Office of the CEO

• Office of the CFO

• Corporate Management 

• Strategic Business Support 

Strategic objectives relating to each sub-programme

• Office of the CEO

- Provides strategic direction of the GTA

- Oversees and ensures service delivery and 
implementation and compliant management 

- Ensures effective functioning of the GTA’s Board of 
Directors 

- Oversees stakeholder relations 

- Coordinates the TER flagship programme

• Office of the CFO

- Financial and Management Accounting 

- Supply Chain Management 

- Risk Management

• Corporate Management 

- Human Capital Management 

- Information and Communication Technology

- Auxiliary Corporate Services 

- Legal Services 

·  Strategic Business Support 

- Strategic Business Planning 

- Compliance Reporting 

- Monitoring and Evaluation

In satisfying and assuring the completeness of reporting 
‘performance information’ for Programme: Administration, it is 
pertinent to declare that there is no performance information 
to be reported in this section (Performance Information by 
Programme/Activity/Objective), because projects for 
Programme: Administration were not included in the GTA’s 
2016/17 APP, as they were all managed  through the GTA’s 
Operation Plan-2016/17. Some of the projects implemented 
in the programme are detailed in the situational analysis 
above, particularly organisational environment, and in 
the two sections below, i.e., Governance, and Human 
Resource Management. 

With  reference to the notes above, Programme1: Administration 
provides only the names of the sub-programmes and 
their purposes, to introduce structures responsible for 
administration including activities that impact on delivering 
services according to the mandate of the organisation

Programme 2: Destination Marketing 

The purpose of the programme

To market and promote Gauteng as the destination of 
choice for an African world-class must see big-city region 
experience. 

Sub-programmes 

• Market Intelligence and Research 

• Communication and Content Management 

• Digital Marketing and Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM)

• Media Relations 

• Corporate Communications 

Strategic objectives relating to each sub-programme

• Market Intelligence and Research 

- Identify areas of research and manage the research 
process to inform the GTA’s overall marketing and 
plan;

- Develop a Marketing Strategy and Plan; 

- Research the socio-economic impact of events hosted 
in Gauteng; and

- Research the return on Investments of all GTA’s 
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marketing initiatives.

• Communication and Content Management 

- Develop and manage content designed to influence 
consumer’s travel decisions; 

- Promote Gauteng at a provincial, national and 
international levels as a key travel destination; and

- Develop, implement, and manage band Gauteng, 
COHWHS, Dinokeng and township tourism 
experiences and other destination brands.

• Digital Marketing and CRM

- Develop, implement and manage all electronic 
marketing activities including the GTA’s website;

- Develop, implement, and manage the GTA’s social 
media platforms;

- Develop, implement, and manage the GTA’s 

e-marketing strategy and plan; and 

- Provide online support to Gauteng tour operators 
and to events managers wanting to list and promote 
their information on the Gauteng.net website.

• Media Relations 

- Work with South African and international media 
houses to obtain coverage, advertising, and other 
media coverage opportunities; and

- Package and provide a range of information to 

media houses on upcoming events, new products 
and tourism experiences, etc.

• Corporate Communications 

- Develop with South African and international media 
houses to obtain coverage, advertising, and other 
media coverage opportunities; and

- Package and provide a range of information to 
media houses on upcoming events, new products 
and tourism.  

Strategic objectives, performance 
indicators planned targets and actual 
achievements

Strategic objectives

The following strategic objectives: “Grow the visitor 
economy by stimulating demand through effective tourism 
marketing and promotion” was adopted for implementing 
the Programme and its sub-programme. This strategic 
objective expresses the number of projects implemented 
in the contexts of attraction-based marketing and promotions 
activities; dedicated destination campaigns; and joint-
marketing initiatives; township-based SMMEs, and youth 
township-based SMMEs promoted through the market access 
programme; and destination promotions conducted in 
African, and BRICS markets platforms.

Programme/Activity/Obective:
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Grow the visitor econo my by 
stimulating de mand through 
effective tourism marketing 
and promotion.

References per line:
1. Attraction-based 
marketing and promotions 
activities; dedicated 
destination campaigns,
and joint-marketing 
initiatives;

2. Township-based SMMEs, 
and youth township-
based SM MEs promoted 
through the market access 
programme; and

3. Destination pro motions 
conducted in African, and 
BRICS markets platforms.

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
strategic 
objective 
as from 
2016/17 FY

      125     132  Target 
overachived

7 The GTA managed 
to involve products and 
created strate gic relations 
with different experiences 
and products in gen erating 
content that enabled the 
Agency to overachieve the 
set target.

130 135 Target 
overachieved

5 The GTA used events 
and other projects 
to embed the work of 
township tourism products 
market access. This 
enabled the Agency to 
achieve more than the set 
target.

7 7 Target achieved 
as planned 

0 N/A
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Programme/activity/objective:
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Number of 
attraction-
based 
marketing 
and 
promotions 
activities 
implemented 

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

100 103 Target over-
achieved 

3 The GTA managed 
to involve products 
and created strategic 
relations with different 
experiences and 
products in generating 
content that enabled the 
Agency to overachieve 
the set target.

Number of 
dedicated 
destination 
campaigns 
conducted

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

10 13 Target over-
achieved

3 The integrated 
marketing approach 
was implemented and 
enabled the Agency to 
achieve more than the 
set targets

Number 
of joint-
marketing 
initiatives 
implemented 

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

15 16 Target over-
achieved

1 The integrated 
marketing approach 
was implemented and 
enabled the Agency to 
achieve more than the 
set targets

Number of 
Township 
–based 
SMMES 
promoted 
through 
the market 
access 
programme

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

80 89 Target 
achieved as 

planned 

9 The GTA used events 
and other projects 
to embed the work 
of township tourism 
products market access. 
This enabled the Agency 
to achieve more than the 
set target.

Number of 
youth-owned 
Township-
based 
SMMEs 
promoted 
through 
the market 
access 
programme

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

50 56 Target over-
achieved 

6 The GTA used events 
and other projects 
to embed the work 
of township tourism 
products market access. 
This enabled the Agency 
to achieve more than the 
set target.

Number of 
destination 
promotions 
conducted 
in African 
markets 
platforms

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

5 5 Target 
achieved as 

planned 

0 N/A

Number of 
destination 
promotions 
conducted 
in BRICS 
markets 
platforms 
promoted

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

2 2 Target 
achieved as 

planned 

0 N/A
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The contribution of performance programmes/ activities/objectives to the 
achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated goals.

integrated marketing and promotion work. 

Strategy to overcome areas of under 
performance 

All set targets were achieved, strategy to overcome areas 
for underperformance in not applicable in Programme: 
Destination Marketing. 

Comment to deviations
There was no deviation recorded

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes on planned targets. 

Linking performance with budgets

Programme 3: Business and             
Leisure events
The purpose of the programme

To bid for, and host mega major, significance, local and 
community events in Gauteng

Sub-programmes 

•			Bidding and hosting 

•   Hosting of Events 

The strategic objectives relating to each programme 

Bidding and Hosting

• Work with identified role players to initiate and/ or bid for 
the hosting of business and leisure events;

•	 Participate in the preparation and submission of bid 
documents.

Hosting of Events 

• Support events that are unique to Gauteng and that can be 
grown into major or significant events and transferred to 
private ownership once sustainable (incubated 
events);

• Support events that promote talent development; and

•  Facilitate the development of a year calendar 

Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned 
targets and actual achievements

Strategic objectives

The following strategic objectives: “Position Gauteng as 
a global destination for business and leisure events was 
adopted for implementing the Programme and its 
sub programmes”. This strategic objective expresses the 
number of projects implemented in the contexts of events 
support, and rand value generated from the implemented 
events projects. 
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Destination Marketing 25 091 29 044 3 953 17 304 27 077 (9 773)

Total 25 091 29 044 3 953 17 304 27 077 (9 773)

Destination Marketing played a critical and central role in 
guiding the organisation’s drive and work in implementing 
its marketing strategies and action plans during the year 
under review. Co ordinating the work of media relations, 
brand management, digital marketing, leisure marketing 
and international marketing, enabled the Agency to use 
its resources optimally, achieve the set targets and retain 
top of mind destination brand presence. Marketing is 
the heartbeat of any organisation and the success of any 
marketing campaigns and projects depends on the ability 
to innovate and measure return on investment. The increase 
in the Agency’s digital and social media presence, and the 
uptake of our township-based youth enterprises on our tourism 
marketing programmes bear testimonies to the importance of  
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Strategic objectives, performance 
indicators planned targets and actual 
achievements

Strategic objectives
The following strategic objectives: “Enhance visitor 

experience through the provision of quality visitor services” 
was adopted for implementing the Programme and its sub-
programme. This strategic objective expresses the number 
of projects implemented in the contexts of Visitor Information 
Centre, and Tourism Safety programmes. 

Programme/Activity/Obective:
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Position Gauteng as a 
global destination for 
business and leisure 
events.

References per line:
1: supported events or 
events organisers.
2: Rand value generated 
from the supported 
events

73 65 68 Target 
overachived

3 The GTA improved the means 
for dealing with stakeholders. 
Thus, partnership with private 
sector assisted the GTA to 
overachieve the annual targets 
by two.

R1b
(One billion)

R1,5 bn
(One 

billion, 
five 

hundred 
million)

R1,594,279,950 
bn

(One billion, five 
hundred and 

ninety-four million, 
two hundred 

seventy nine, and 
nine hundred fifty 

thousands)

Target 
overachieved

R94,279,950 m
(Ninety-four million, 

two hundred 
seventy nine, and 
nine hundred fifty 

thousands

The overachievement is 
attributed to the increase 
in the number of visitors/ 
participants in different events 
that the Agency supported. 
This is the result of successful 
marketing/ promotion of 
events during the year under 
review.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Programme/activity/objective:
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Number 
of  business 
Events 
supported

5 40 46 50 52 Target 
overachieved 

2 The GTA improved 
the means for 
dealing with 
stakeholders. Thus, 
partnerships with 
private sector 
assisted the GTA 
to overachieve the 
annual target by 
two.

Number of 
Major of 
event bids

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

2 2 Target 
achieved as 

planned 

0 N/A 

Number of 
signature 
events 
supported

10 20 27 6 7 Target 
overachieved 

1 The GTA improved 
the means for 
dealing with 
stakeholders. Thus, 
partnerships with 
private sector 
assisted the GTA 
to overachieve the 
annual target by 
one.

Number 
of regional 
events 
incubated 
into 
signature 
events 

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

5 7 Target 
overachieved 

2 The GTA improved 
the means for 
dealing with 
stakeholders. As a 
result, partnerships 
with private sector 
assisted the GTA 
to overachieve the 
annual target by 
one.

Number 
of bids 
for mega 
events 
(World 
Expo)

No actual 
achievement 
for 2013/14 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2015/16 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator 
as from 
2016/17 FY

2 1 Target 
underachieved 

1 Lack of bid support 
from members’ 
country 

Rand 
economic 
benefit 
generated 
from events 
hosted in 
Gauteng 

R436 m
(four hundred 
and thirty-six 
million 

R711.6m
(seven 
hundred 
and eleven 
million and 
six hundred 
thousand 

R1bn
(One billion

R1,5 bn
(One 

billion, five 
hundred 
million)

R1,594,279,950 
bn

(One billion, five 
hundred and 

ninety-four million, 
two hundred and 
seventy nine, and 
nine hundred fifty 

thousands)

 Target 
overachieved

R94,279,950 m

(Ninety-four 
million, two 
hundred and 

seventy-nine, and 
nine hundred fifty 

thousands) 

The 
overachievement 
is attributed to the 
increase in the 
number of visitors/ 
participants in 
different events 
that the Agency 
supported. This 
is the result 
of successful 
marketing/ 
promotion of events 
during the year 
under review.
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The contribution of performance programmes/activities/objectives to the 
achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated goals.

The programme assisted MICE and event organisers to 
plan and implement successful Conferences, events and 
exhibitions through GTA financial and none financial support. 
The Township Communities benefited from temporary jobs 
such as security, cleaning services, catering, merchandise 
sales, exhibition and stage build up and breakdown etc., 
because of this programme. The events have a short to long 
term opportunity for the townships to grow their businesses.

Comment to deviations

The deviation on the number of bids for mega events (World 
Expo) was because of actual target not met due to events to 
quarter one approval and change of hosting dates. In case of 
bids, lack of bid support. 
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Business and Leisure Events 23 190 20 616 2 574 24 978 25 137 159

Total 23 190 20 616 2 574 24 978 25 137 159

Strategy to overcome areas of under 
performance

The GTA will invite event organisers to GTA Significant 
events to learn and exchange ideas with successful event 
planners; include event organisers in our annual exhibitions 
for business matchmaking (i.e. Indaba, Meetings Africa, 
etc.); and recommend training courses for event organisers 
to attend as part of their capacity building in events.

Changes to planned targets

There were no changes to planned targets. 

Linking performance with budgets
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Programme 4: 
Visitor Information Services 
The purpose of the programme

To provide and manage visitor information services 
designed to enhance visitor’s experience.

Sub-Programmes:

•  Visitor Information Centres (VICs)

•  Visitor Safety and Recourse

The strategic objectives relating to each 
programme 

Visitor Information Centres (VICs)

•		Manage VICs

•		Accredit VICs

•		Train staff working in VICs

Visitor Safety and Recourse

•	 	Develop, implement, and manage a Visitor Safety and 
Resource Programme that include safety coordination and 
tracking, crisis communication; victim support, etc. 

Strategic objectives, performance 
indicators planned targets and actual 
achievements

Strategic objectives
The following strategic objectives: “Enhance visitor 
experience through the provision of quality visitor services” 
was adopted for implementing the Programme and its sub-
programme. This strategic objective expresses the number 
of projects implemented in the contexts of Visitor Information 
Centre, and Tourism Safety programmes. 

Programme/Activity/Obective:
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Enhance visitor experience through the 
provision of quality visitor services 
References per line:
1. Visitor services projects (VICs; and Tourism 
Safety programme)

No actual 
achievement for 
2015/16 FY, 
new strategic 
objective as from 
2016/17 FY

3 3 Achieved as 
planned 

0 N/A

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Programme/activity/objective:
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Number 
of Visitor 
Information 
Centres 
serviced

No actual 
achievement for 
2013/14 FY, 
new performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement for 
2015/16 FY, 
new performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

2 2 Target achieved 
as planned 

0 N/A 

Number 
of Tourism 
Safety 
programmes 
implemented

No actual 
achievement for 
2013/14 FY, 
new performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement 
for 2014/15 
FY, new 
performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

No actual 
achievement for 
2015/16 FY, 
new performance 
indicator as from 
2016/17 FY

1 1 Target achieved 
as planned 

0 N/A 
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The Impact of Destination               
Marketing in Gauteng 
Introduction 

The Impact of the Destination Marketing is based on tourism 
performance that the SAT released in 2017. 

As a norm, the statistics cover both international and 
domestic, reported according to the following variables: 
arrivals, bednights, length of stay, purpose of visit and spend. 

The released statistics covers the year 2016 from January 
to December, however, it contains t h e  previous years 
information as a means of bringing in comparative 
performance scores.  

Problem statement

In aligning the GTA’s core programmes to the current Gauteng’s 
priority programme, i.e., TMR, the GTA has undertaken a
rigorous exercise to ensure that its projects are fully aligned 
to this new focus. Accordingly, greater emphasis has been 
placed on the growth and development of township tourism 
as one of the game changers in line with the TER programme. 

The development of tourism based community enterprises, 
and the packaging of new and authentic tourism experiences 
became tasks for economic development, thereby creating 
employment through partnership with creative industries, thus 
promoting the rich culture, history and heritage of destination 
Gauteng. 

As the desired outcome in delivering services according 
to the mandate of the Agency, as treasured in the Agency’s 
Strategic Plan-2014-19 and Annual Performance Plan-
2016/17, the Agency’s key focus remained,  increasing 
tourism demand,  attracting first time visitors, and developing 
niche market programmes. 

Core questions 

It is of utmost importance to discuss the core questions guided 
data collection that lead to this report. The key questions relate 
to the usefulness of empirical evidence to assist management 
in making apt strategic decisions, and implementing informed 
strategies to achieve the strategic goals of the GTA. 

There is an increasing consensus on the importance of 
tourism as a strategic sector in the national economy, insofar 
as it provides an essential contribution to the economic well-

The contribution of performance programmes/activities/objectives to the 
achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated goals.

Information Services programme solely focused on servicing 
visitors, thereby encouraging tourism travel culture.

Comment to deviations
There was no deviation recorded

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance
All targets were achieved as planned 

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to planned targets 

Linking performance with budgets

As a DMO, the GTA focused on promoting Gauteng 
province as a tourism destination full of tourism attractions, 
experiences and business development initiatives meant to 
directly contribute towards economic growth and economic 
beneficiation. Such activities and programmes were aligned 
within the bigger provincial imperatives of economic 
Transformation Modernisation and Reindustrialisation. Visitor  
Information Services programmes and its project focused on, 
activities exposing township tourism experiences and 
attractions throughout our exhibitions and roadshows. 
During the year under review, the functions of Visitor
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R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Visitor Information Services - - - 14 143 14 143 0

Total - - - 14 143 14 143 0
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being of the resident population, contributes to the economic 
objectives of government and shows its possible role as a 
relevant player in moving towards a more innovative and 
inclusive economy.

Tourism comprises the activities of persons travelling to and 
staying in places outside their usual environment for not more 
than one consecutive year, for leisure, business and purposes 
other than being employed in the place visited. 

This document reports on key variables, tracking performance 
of tourism in the country and in Gauteng. The variables in 
question are as follows:

•	 The growth percentage of internationals/domestic visiting  
the country and Gauteng; 

•  The primary reason for internationals/domestic to visits to 
Gauteng; and demonstrating how Gauteng compares 

    to other top 4 destinations in relation to purpose of visit; 
and

•		The total foreign/domestic direct spend generated in 
 Gauteng. 

•	 The percentage of international/domestic paid   
 bednights in relation to unpaid bednights; 

Methodology

The information provided in this report is based on the SAT 
data tables. The data reports on key performance variables. 
The report is based on the following reports:

• South African Tourism(SAT) and Statistics South Africa      

• South African monthly surveys conducted at OR Tambo  
   International Airport. 

• United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO)  
   World Barometer, April 2016

The GTA analysed and interpreted data using charts to illustrate 
Gauteng Tourism’s performance in relation to the national 
and other provincial performance. 

Findings

Foreign International Arrivals in Gauteng

During 2016, the total number of foreign arrivals in South 
Africa shows an increase by just over a million. According to 
South African Tourism statistics, the number of foreign tourist 
arrivals grew by 12.8 percent from 8.9 million in 2015 to 
10 million in 2016. As depicted in the graph below (Foreign 

Arrivals into all South African Provinces: 2016), Gauteng 
secured a 43 percent market share, which shows an 
increase in arrivals to 4.3 million, translated into an increase 
by 623,124 (16.9 percent).

According to the graph above, Limpopo recorded a 
significant increase in international visitors, recoding 15.3 
percent, competing toe-to-toe with the Western Cape, which 
recorded 15.6 percent increase. Western Cape is ranked as 
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the second most visited province by international visitors, and 
the province enjoyed 27,237 more visitors over Limpopo. 
As demonstrated above, all provinces showed good 
performance, recovering from the negative performance 
suffered in 2015, which was experienced because of the 
introduction of the biometric system.  

In 2015, Limpopo welcomed Zimbabweans who accounted 
for 56 percent of all foreign arrivals into the province. The 
same can be inferred with visitors from Lesotho, recoding 
60 percent boost travel statistics into the Free State and 
Mozambicans into Mpumalanga recording 36 percent 
arrivals; with the North West enjoying a 60 percent share of 
visitors of which the majority were from Botswana.

Bednights 

According to the National Tourism released statistics, 
the National bednights came to 88,8 million in 2016, 
increasing by 9.2 percent over the 2015 performance. 
Gauteng recorded 39 percent, capturing the largest share 
of bednights when compared with other provinces.

The Gauteng province recorded a double-digit growth in paid 
bednights when compared to 2015 statistics, performing 
outstandingly while the majority of the provinces recorded 
only a single digit growth. 

Limpopo was the only other province that enjoyed a 
double-digit growth of 26 percent of paid nights although 
only capturing 7.1 percent of all bednights. A large share 
of 70 percent bednights spent in the country by foreign 
tourists were unpaid. 

Out of the total national bednights, as depicted in the 
graph below: Total bednights v/s Paid bednights: 2016), 
only 8 million bednights were paid for in Gauteng, while 
a larger share of 26 million translating to 66 percent was 
spent elsewhere with either friends, family, relatives, in 
hospitals or any place where visitors were hosted. 

The Western Cape enjoyed a larger share of 38 percent 
of paid bednights, a little over 10 million bednights were 
spent in paid accommodation. Paid bednights in Gauteng 
declined by -3.7 percent, whilst Western Cape enjoyed an 
11.6 percent increase. 

Purpose of Visit

People decide to visit destinations to fulfil a desire or need. 
Their motivation to travel can either be a business meeting, a 
leisurely holiday, visiting family and friends, attend a funeral 
or a wedding, a conference, visiting a shrine or a temple.   
In the above section, we established that 66 percent of those 
who visited Gauteng spent nights in unpaid accommodation, 
and the assumption was made based on the motive for travel. 
Admittedly some who come for Visiting Friends, Family and 

Relatives (VFR) may stay in paid accommodation, 
although only a negligent percentage.

The graph below (Purpose of visit in 5 of the most visited 
provinces: 2016) projects a picture of where visitors could 
have spent their night, if not in paid accommodation. A 
total of 38.4 percent were in the province visiting 
friends, family or relatives; 15 percent were on holiday, 
15.1 percent were shopping for business purposes; 14 
percent on MICE; and 1.2 percent for medical services. 
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The graph below shows the character of five provincial 
destinations in South Africa with regard to the ‘purpose of 
visits’. Western Cape is by far a leading holiday destination 
with almost 57.3 percent visiting for holiday purposes. The 
Western Cape attracts largely the European markets who 
visit primarily for holiday purposes and who are also mature 
travellers. The destination attracts less who visit friends and 
family (VFR) and more visitors on holiday.  

The MICE sector in the Western Cape has recorded health 
share of 13.5 percent of those who visited the province 
in 2016. Mpumalanga and Gauteng were the leading 
provinces with a high percentage on VFR. Shopping for 
personal purposes currently accounts 37.1 percent, which 
is the primary purpose of visit in Limpopo. Gauteng 
contests Limpopo for this source market as the second 
destination enjoying a high percentage of those visiting 
for personal shopping, while leading in business shopping, 
recording 16.5 percent. Visitors who travel to South Africa 
for business shopping or personal shopping are m a i n l y 
cross border shoppers. 

Revenue 

According to research conducted by South African Tourism, 
almost 70 percent of the total foreign tourism revenue was 
generated in two provinces; Gauteng (45 percent) and 
Western Cape (24 percent). In total R 75.5 billion was 
generated from foreign tourism revenue in the country, 
receipts increased by 10.8 percent. According to the 
graph below (Total Foreign Direct Spend in all South African 
Provinces: 2016), the Western Cape enjoyed the highest 
growth of 22 percent in revenue, followed by the Eastern 
Cape 

recording 16 percent, and Gauteng recording 15 percent. 
Major declines were recorded in t he  Free State recording 
-13 percent, followed by North West recording -9.6 
percent, with Limpopo recording -4.2 percent, and Kwa-
Zulu Natal at -6 percent. 

Foreign tourism spending always reacts to economic 
conditions. The poor performance of the Rand against other 
currencies often benefits markets trading with other major 
currencies. The growth in the Western Cape is due to the 
European holiday makers whilst contributors of growth in 
Gauteng are normally Africa, and Asian markets such as 
China and India.  

Domestic Trip 

The National Tourism statics declares that 26.6 million 
domestic trips were taken by South African residents in 
2016.The number of domestic trips increased by 6 percent 
over the 2015 performance. Limpopo was the most visited 
province in 2016 by the domestic tourism market, recording 
8.3 million visitors. According to the graph below (Domestic 
Trips to Destination Gauteng: 2016) Gauteng is the second 
most visited province following Limpopo, recoding 4.4 
million visitors to Gauteng in 2016.

Bednights 

The number of bednights spent by domestic visitors increased 
by 1 percent over the 2015 performance. A  t o t a l 
o f  103 million bednights were spent in the country 
in 2016. Gauteng was one of the three provinces that 
suffered a decline, as it recorded a decline of -31 percent 
in bednights, with the Northern Cape recording -41 percent, 
and the North West 
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at -43 percent. Gauteng maintained its second ranking as a 
destination that captured the most domestic tourism bednights. 
21 million bednights were spent in Gauteng, and 27 million, 
in Limpopo. 

Purpose of Visit

The 2016 statistics, as reported by the National Tourism, 
claims that those who travelled for religious purposes 
visited Kwa Zulu Natal recording 110,000, and Gauteng 
recording 109,000. Limpopo, statistics are based on 

historic data, with reference to visitors to Moria, was 
expected to lead in this instance, but only captured 58,000. 
In 2015, Limpopo was a leading religious destination with 
ten times more people who visited the province for religious 
purposes i.e. 536,000 visitors. The graph below is a 
depiction of tourism performance in terms of purpose of 
visit. For allowing fair analysis of holiday, business, medical, 
and religious variables, the VFR has been removed from the 
graph below as it outperformed all other variables.

17 million South Africans travelled to other provinces to visit friends, family or relatives. The remaining 35 percent visited 
other provinces was mainly for “medical purposes recording 3 percent. 
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Spend 

Statistics, as depicted in the graph below (Domestic Tourism 
Spend: 2016) Gauteng, Limpopo, and Kwa-Zulu Natal 
generated more than 60 percent of all domestic tourism 
revenue. Although Limpopo enjoyed a larger share of 

domestic spend, Gauteng performed outstandingly well 
in 2016, recording 120 percent growth over the 2015 
performance. 

Gauteng generated R 5.1 billion from domestic visitors, an 
impressive increase from the dip suffered in 2015 when only 
R2.6 billion was spent in the province. In the detailed Annual 
Tourism Performance report that will be released by SAT in 
June, further insights on which markets contributed to this 
growth will be articulated. 

Conclusion

Gauteng enjoyed a good performance in 2016 recording 
growth in both visitor arrivals and spend generated in 
the province. The number of arrivals grew by 17 percent well 
above the country’s growth percentage of 13 percent. 

Findings on purpose of visit suggest that Gauteng needs 
to work on implementing its strategies, positioning the 
destination to appeal to holidaymakers and a definite 
business destination. Holidaymakers are an important 
segment as they normally spend more days during their stay 
in the province, a large percentage of this market (holiday 
makers) spends their nights in paid accommodation.  

Recommendations 

Relating to the finding, specifically on Holidaymakers,  
Gauteng should continue to focus on the Holidaymakers 
segments, but piggy back on SAT marketing activities to 
target the segments to bring them to South Africa.  In 2013, 
the Grant Thornton study provided recommendations, 
advising the GTA to target independent business travellers 
in conjunction with the Provincial Investment Agency and 
the details are discussed below in the context of the sub-
title: Defend and grow the business market, as it affirms 
the positioning of Gauteng as a business destination. Africa 
business travellers are business owners looking for goods to 
source or invest or partner and can choose Gauteng for a 
destination to investigate such opportunities. Adding to the 
recommendations above, it is suggested that the GTA’s DMO 
programmes should focus on the following areas: 

• Invest in intensifying understanding of markets, which are 
key contributors in Gauteng’s foreign tourism revenue. 
The GTA should take into consideration the motivation 
to visit Gauteng and continuously monitor satisfaction 
levels of visitors experiences about destination Gauteng. 
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The destination Gauteng’s packaging of experiences 
should respond directly to market demands whilst special 
attention must be directed towards providing an improved 
experience of Gauteng.

•  Defend and grow the business-market. The 2016 statistics 
demonstrated that while Gauteng is not a strong 
holiday destination, only 15 percent of visitors come 
to Gauteng for holiday purpose. Gauteng’s position as 
a business destination is not that great either, Western 
Cape competes Gauteng for the MICE market. A strong 
recommendation is to set a target to grow this market 
share.  

•  Africa Tourism strategy - statistics shows that 60% of visitors 
are from Africa The overall (international) percentage of 
visitors coming to Gauteng for shopping purposes add to 
22 percent. Of the 22%, the majority are from neighbouring 
African countries, known as cross-border shoppers. Of 
the 22 percent, 5 percent come to shop for personal use 
and 16.5 percent for business use. Recoding from the 
qualitative study that the GTA conducted in 2014 with 
expatriates from Mozambique, Zimbabwe, Botswana, 
Nigeria, Angola, and Kenya, the Agency managed to 
generate insight about the African market, deliberating 
on the perceptions about Gauteng. Their perceptions 
about destination Gauteng and as the recommendations 
of the study above, was in the context of the following 
areas: 

- Invest more in research to understand the needs of 
an African traveller and identify areas that need 
tourism development to cater for the Africa Market.

- Work together with all stakeholders, such as airlines 
and cross-border buses to promote Gauteng tourism 
in all SADC countries

- Package experiences and service that are 
geared towards attracting the African market.

- Initiate a work-stream to be included in the Africa 
Day Campaign for Gauteng to leverage on the 
event to promote destination Gauteng. 

• The Africa strategy need to focus on addressing the 
needs of African travellers, and this can be initiated by 
positioning Gauteng as a “Proudly African Destination” 
and responding to strategic offering of a “big city” 
experience.

• Continuously seek to promote Gauteng‘s unique 
experiences to promote.  Today’s traveller is not interested 
in the same old experiences that have been repeatedly 
marketed. 

They need new, authentic experience that have not been 
explored. The work in townships experiences should 
focus on identifying true gems to develop as niche 
experiences.

• Domestic Tourism is bread and butter – The current 
economic conditions in the country have put pressure on 
the domestic market.  This however provides an opportunity 
for the province to encourage intra-provincial travel for 
holiday breaks. The country’s recent downgrades to ‘junk 
status’ will make travelling financially unviable.

 •  Use events to drive market development for all markets – 
the following are categories that the Agency should use 
as areas for DMO to increase visitors in Gauteng:

-  Business events - including large business events; 

-  Business events targeted at SADC countries 
convenience is key;

-   General events – sports, festivals, concerts, lifestyle 
events; 

-   Consumer/lifestyle events targeting African markets; 

-   Staycations – enjoy own backyard – localisation – 
grow the resident market;

- Extend stays – “stay and play” – lifestyle and 
entertainment – there is a wide range of attractions to 
expand the experience(s) “stay and play”;

-   The wedding market – attracts people from all over 
South Africa;

-   Medical tourism;

-   Golf tourism; ande

-   Shopping tourism- for all markets. 



Revenue Collection
The GTA does not collect revenue.

Capital Investment 
The issue of capital investment is not relevant to the GTA, 
because the Agency is not in the Business of Constructing 
Assets.
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PART C:  

Governance
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INTRODUCTION 
The GTA is a  schedule 3(c) Provincial Public Entity in 
terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No. 
1 of 1999, established in terms of the Gauteng Tourism 
Act, No. 10 of 2001 which becomes its enabling Act. 
During the year under review, the Agency continuously 
reviewed its compliance with governance principles to 
ensure leading practice standards are maintained. This was 
also to ensure compliance with sound corporate governance 
practices as required by the principles of good governance 
as recommended by the King Code of Governance for 
South Africa (2009) (King III). The Agency adhered to the 
PFMA and Treasury Regulations as applicable to Schedule 
3(c). Such compliance has resulted in ensuring review and 
implementation of the following policies:

•   Supply-chain Management policy

•   Credit Card policy

•   Petrol Card policy

•			Receivables policy

•   Asset Management policy

•   Fraud Prevention policy

•   Materiality policy

•			Investment policy

The Board of Directors complied in all material respects with 
the principles contained in the King III Code, as well as with 
the additional requirements for good corporate governance 
stipulated in the Public Finance Management Act.

Portfolio Committees 

This is not applicable to the GTA. The Agency engaged with 
the Portfolio committee through the GDED. 

Executive Authority

The Executive Authority as the Shareholder appoints the 
Board. Members of the GTA Board are appointed with 
effect from 1 November 2014 until 31 October 2017. The 
GTA Board has concluded a Shareholder’s Compact with 
the Executive Authority. Shareholder’s Compact includes Key 
Performance Areas (KPAs) and associated Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs). 

This document ensures that there is an effective leadership 
and governance framework, clarifying the role of the 
members of the MEC and the GTA, as well as the alignment 

of strategy, a clear mandate and performance targets for the 
GTA, and effective monitoring as conducted by the Executive 
Authority. The Shareholder Compact further monitors the 
Board’s performance with respect to these KPAs, through the 
submission of quarterly reports. During the year, the Board 
complied with these statutory requirements.

The Accounting Authority/Board 

Introduction

The importance and purpose of the Board

The Gauteng Tourism Act determines the size of the GTA’s 
Board, permitting a minimum of 7 and a maximum of 10 
Directors to be appointed by the Shareholder. A unitary Board 
structure is applied, with the majority being independent 
non-Executive Directors. As at 31 March 2017, the Board 
comprised one (1) executive and eight (8) non-executive 
members. The positions of Chairperson and Chief Executive 
Officer were separately held to ensure a clear division 
of duties. The Chairperson of the Board is an independent 
non-executive director, in line with the recommendations of 
King III.

Board’s responsibilities and accountabilities for the 
public entity’s performance and strategic direction 

The Board has a vital responsibility for ensuring 
the performance of the Agencyt while retaining full and 
effective control. It provides strategic direction to 
the Agency and is responsible to the Shareholder for setting 
strategic objectives and key policies, major plans of action, 
its risk policy, annual budgets and business plans. It ensures 
that the Shareholder’s performance objectives are achieved 
through performance monitoring systems and reporting.

The role of the Board 

Board Charter

The Board adopted the Board Charter in 2015. The Charter 
sets out the responsibilities of the Board with regard to the 
adoption of strategic plans, developing a clear definition 
of materiality, monitoring of operational performance and 
management, determination of policy processes to ensure 
the integrity of the Agency risk management and internal 
controls, communication policy, director selection, orientation 
and evaluation. 
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Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members
Audit and Risk Committee 8 3 Ms NM Mufamadi

Dr Z Zitha

Mr H Moolla

Marketing Committee 3 3 Mr H Ntshingila

Ms K Sangoni

Ms M Ravele 

Corporate Governance 
Committee

3 4 Dr Z Zitha

Ms M Chiloane 

Mr S Mthembu 

Ms P Ratlabala

Committee
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Remuneration of Board members

The GTA Non-Executive Directors were remunerated in 
accordance with the National Treasury guidelines and 
as determined by MEC/Shareholder. Ex-officio Directors 
(Shareholder’s Representative) members are not remunerated 
for their services on the Board. 

No performance-based remuneration or retainer fees are 
paid to Non-Executive Directors. Senior management and 
other employees are paid market-related salaries as well as 
through the GTA incentive schemes, based on performance 
and achievement of specific set targets.

Name Remuneration R’  Other allowance Other re-imbursements Total
Mr K Mthembu (Chairperson)  182 992  - 24 864 207 856

Dr Z Zitha 118 068  - 9 970 128 038

Ms CGM Chiloane 48 217  - 8 490 56 707

Ms NM Mufamadi 77 206 - 8 779 85 985

Mr H Ntshingila  42 035 - 6 835 48 870

Ms ME Ravele  35 499 - 9 048 44 547

Ms KLN Sangoni                                  29 672  -                                -                                       - 29 672

Mr ME Zwane (until September 2016) -                 - - 

Ms P Ratlabala (GDED Representative)   -                                    - -   - 

the Finance Unit led by the CFO in ensuring that the Agency 
is compliant with financials laws and regulations, including 
the necessary financial systems of internal control

Internal Audit And Audit Committees

The Internal Audit activity played a crucial role in ensuring 
that systems of internal controls, risk management,  and 
corporate governance are maintained. Their critical risk 
areas that were identified and covered in the Audit Coverage 
Plan included of the following key divisions:

•   Information Technology;

•   Marketing

•   Finance, Procurement and Treasury;

•   Asset Management;

•   Compliance and Risk;

•   Human Resources; and

•   Performance Information.

Risk Management 

The GTA performed an annual risk assessment to identify 
new and emerging risks and to ensure that the necessary
controls are in place to mitigate them.

The Audit and Risk Committee, which is made up of non-
Executive members of the Board were responsible for 
monitoring the effectiveness of the risk management system, 
deliberating on the status of the risks in terms of addressing 
possible concerns by providing advisory services on quarterly 
basis.

The Agency witnessed progress in the management of risks, 
and improvements in the Agency’s performance, by 
pro-actively addressing areas that could potentially affect 
service delivery.

Internal Control Unit

During the year under review, the Agency did not have a 
stand-alone Internal Control unit. This function was fulfilled by
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The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit Committee members 

Name Qualifications Internal or 
External

If internal, posi-
tion in the public 

entity

Date appointed Date Resigned No. of Meetings 
attended

Ms. NM Mufa madi Bcompt, Industrial 
Relations, HR 
Management

External - 01/11/2014 Active 8

Dr. Z Zitha MBA, Bond University;

Ph.D Columbia 
University;

B.Sc.,Accounting/ 
finance, Saint Peters 
College

Project Management, 
Executive Education

External - 01/11/2014 Active 7

Mr. H Moolla B.com Account-
ing and Business 
Economics, University 
of Durban-Westville; 

Post Grad Diploma 
Accounting, University 
of Durban-Westville; 
Board Qualifying 
Examinations, SAICA.

 

External - 28/10/2015 Active 8

Mr ME Zwane LLM, University of 
Pretoria;

B.Proc, Wits 
University;

Dip Company Law, 
Wits University

External - 01/11/2014 01/09/2016  0

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

Compliance with the policies, procedures and applicable 
legislation was strictly monitored. In order to improve on 
internal controls, various policies and procedures were 
reviewed and implemented. The GTA Audit and Risk 
Committee oversaw compliance matters within GTA. The 
Committee required that: 

•   The Internal Auditor reports comply with laws and 
regulations or supervisory requirements of the Audit and 
Risk Committee; and

•   The Internal Auditor submits a report on the level of 
compliance with laws and regulations or supervisory 
requirements at every Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting, the system of internal controls over pre-
determined objectives, and the code of ethics and 
business conduct.

Relevant recommendations are reflected in the minutes of 
the Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Internal Auditor

reported directly to the GTA’s Audit and Risk Committee, 
and had unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the 
committee. 

All applicable legislation regarding financial matters, 
financial management and other applicable matters have, 
therefore, been complied with.

Fraud and Corruption  

The Agency has an approved Fraud and Corruption Plan, 
and the following mechanisms are in place to report fraud 
and corruption: 

•   Whistling blowing

•   The need for officials to make confidential disclosure 
about suspect fraud and corruption.

No cases were reported to the Fraud Hotline for the year 
under review.
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Minimising Conflict of Interest 

The GTA requires SBD 4 (Declaration of interest) to be filled 
and signed by all prospective bidders as a means of detecting 
and minimising conflict of interest. Furthermore, the National 
Treasury Central Supplier Database verifies whether bidders 
are employed by the state thus ensuring that employees do 
not do business with the state.

Members of Bid Committees that are involved with 
a project that may result i n  a conflict of interest are 
restricted from participating and voting in Bid Committee 
meetings. This ensures that the risk of conflict of interest is 
minimised. No conflict of interest was identified during the 
year under review.

Code of Conduct 

The primary purpose of the Employee Code of Conduct 
is to promote exemplary conduct. The GTA is committed 
to conducting all its activities to the highest standard of 
competence, integrity and ethical behaviour, to ensure that 
its conduct is beyond reproach. The Agency is committed to 
providing a working environment that is intended to value 
diversity among its employees. HR Policies, Procedures 
and activities create a respectful workplace in which every 
employee can reach his/her highest potential. 

It is the policy of the GTA to provide the public with the best 
practise level and quality of service. As a public entity, we 
have a responsibility to the public and to deliver our goods 
and/or services in a professional manner, resisting pressures 
to compromise on our values and standards. Employees with 
public contact were expected to promote the best interests of 
the Agency always, and to build upon the public goodwill.

There was no breach of code of conduct reported during 
the year under review.

Health Safety and Environmental Issues 

The objective of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 
(OHSA) is to provide health and safety for persons at work. 
It is the responsibility of the Accounting Officer (CEO) to 
appoint Health and Safety Representatives who will establish 
a committee. Such OHS representatives comprise of 
representatives from various hierarchies within the Agency. 
The Agency’s OHS committee was responsible for enforcing 
Health and Safety Standard and Compliance.

Company/Board Secretary 

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in the corporate 
governance of the Agency. The Company Secretary is 
responsible for the Board, inter alia, acting as a central 
source of information, and advices the Board on matters of 
ethics, adherence to good corporate governance principles, 
and compliance with procedures and applicable statutes. 
The Company Secretary is not a director of the Agency 
as he/she acts independently. In line with good 
governance practice, the appointment and removal of the 
Company Secretary is a matter for the Board. During period 
under review, particularly in October, the Agency appointed 
Mr Nchabeleng as the Company Secretary. Mr Nchabeleng 
acted as both the General Counsel and Company Secretary 
of the Agency.

Social Responsibility

There was no social responsibility programme that the 
Agency implemented during the year under review. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.     

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Attendance 

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and met eight times during the year under review. 

NAME OF MEMBER              NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED    

Non- Executive Member’s 

Ms NM Mufamadi - Chairperson      8    
Dr L Zitha         7    
Mr H Moolla         8

(Independent non-executive ARC member)        

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility 

The Audit and Risk Committee’s responsibilities arise from section 51(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act (“the Act”) 
and Treasury Regulations 27.1.8 and 27.1.10.  The Audit and Risk Committee also adopted formal terms of reference as its 
audit committee charter and regulates its affairs in compliance with this charter.     

The Effectiveness of Internal Control 

The system of internal control is effective according to the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annu al 
Financial Statements and management letter of the Auditor-General. All reports of Auditors are discussed at the committee 
meetings and applicable resolutions are taken. 

Internal Audit 

The internal audit function is outsourced to Rakoma and Associates. Audits were performed in accordance with an a proved 
Risk Management Plan and Three Year Rolling Audit Plan. All the reports issued were discussed between the company and 
the relevant business unit before finalisation. It is the CEO’s responsibility to ensure that recommendations are implemented. 
 The Quality of Management and Monthly / Quarterly Reports Submitted in Terms of the Act  
 
The Committee discussed the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and  issued by the CEO to be 
recommended to the Board for approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer 

Mr Yaseen Asmal is the Authority’s Chief Financial Officer. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements, the Auditor-General’s 
management letter, management responses and the Auditor-General’s final report for the 2016/17 financial year.

 

      

___________________________________ 

Ms NM Mufamadi 

CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE Date: 31 July 2017  
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Human Resource Management

PART: D
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Introduction 

The Human Resource Management programme provides 
effective leadership; recruitment and selection of suitable 
candidates; compensation; performance management; 
employee relations; training and development of employees 
in terms of the individual personal development plans; and 
support in accordance with the relevant legislation, regulations 
and policies to ensure appropriate human resources services 
across the value chain. 

Overview of HR matters at the public entity 
Human Resources is one of the most strategic resources that 

is managed with great care and diligence within the Agency, 
because it must be strategically positioned to:

•   Retain, engage and attract highly competent, skilled 
and talented employees;

•  Promote a workforce that is diverse and inclusive; and 

•  Provide a safe and healthy, learning and working 
environment; and develop employees to their fullest 
potential.

Set HR priorities for the year under review            
and  the impact of these priorities
During the year under review, the HR planned to review 
the human resources strategy for the purpose of aligning 
the strategies with the strategic objective of the GTA. As 
milestones toward aligning the strategy with the objectives 
above, the Agency also reviewed its human resources 
policies in line with the relevant legislation to:

•  Recruit suitably qualified, capable and skilled workforce; 

•  promote employment equity;

•  Develop high-quality leaders and managers who 
exemplify the core values of the agency, and are 
committed to service delivery;

•  Promote an effective performance management system;

•  Effectively manage employee health and wellness in the 
workplace;

•  Coordinate special transformation programmes; and

•  Promote sound labour relations between the employer 
and employees.

Workforce planning framework and key strategies 
to attract and recruit a skilled and capable 
workforce
The objective of the GTA’s workforce planning is to have 
employees that match their job specs. It identifies and 

addresses the skills gaps, required to achieve the Agency 
strategic goals in the ever-changing operational environment.  
During the year under review the Agency reviewed 
its functional structure and aligned skills to positions. 
The Agency also identified the skills gap and recruited 
accordingly.

An Employment Equity Plan was also developed and 
implemented to attract, recruit, and develop current skills in 
line with the Employment Equity Act. Critical positions were 
filled with skilled and qualified employees in the Core 
Business and the Planning unit to strengthen the Agency‘s 
workforce as a DMO.    

Employee Performance Management            
Framework 

For the year under review, the GTA committed to implement 
100  percent  of the performance management 
development system, as guided by the Performance 
Management Policy. All employees signed performance 
contracts. Work plans were developed in line with the 
Agency’s Strategic Plan, Annual Performance Plan (APP) 
and the Operational Plan. Performance assessments were 
conducted and the performance outcomes were implemented 
accordingly.  

Employee Wellness Programmes 
Employee wellness programmes were implemented in terms 
of the approved plans. Employees participated in the 702 
Walk the Talk. On 31st March 2017, a Wellness Day was 
celebrated and employees were given opportunities to 
undergo health checks with different medical professionals.  

Policy Development 
During the year under review human resources reviewed 
sixteen (16) human resources policies in line with all relevant 
legislation. The policies were also aligned with the new 
mandate of the GTA, as a DMO and were all approved by 
the Board.

Highlight achievements
The Agency managed to achieve 38 percent of female 
occupation of posts at senior management level, and stood 
at 1 percent with persons with disabilities. The Agency also 
managed to fill all critical position in terms of the approved 
structure. A 100 percent disclosure rate was recorded in 
respect of Sen io r  Managemen t  Se r v ices  and other 
employees. The agency reviewed the HR Strategy in order to 
provide an effective framework for recruiting, developing and 
retaining employees in a fair and supporting environment. 
The goals listed in the strategy are as follows:
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·  Strategic business partnership

·  Organisational development and design
·  Training and development

Future HR plans/goals
The GTA‘ future plans and goals are to conduct a match 
and placement process to address the issue of skills in 
the Agency, thus aligning skills to functions in terms of the 
functional structure. Training and development of employees 

in line with the Work Skills Plan will be implemented. 
The Human Resources unit will be conducting workshops 
in order to orientate the Agency’s employees on human 
resources policies.

Human resource oversight statistics 

Personnel Cost by programme/activity/objective 

Programme/activity/objective Total Expenditure for 
      the entity

          Personnel 
Expenditure

Personnel exp. as a        
% of total exp. 

No. of 
employees

Average personnel 
cost per employee 

Finance 7 903 579  4 380 890                      55.43% 6 730 148.33

Office of the CEO 3 906 595  -       - - 

 Destination Management 7 309 773  7 309 773 100% 15 487 318.2

Regional Tourism 6 833 009 6 408 123                         93.8% 10 640 812.3

Destination Marketing  24 973 850 5 513 191                         22.1% 15 367 546

Corporate Services 25 800 079 12 929 743                         50.1% 18 718 319

Corporate Communications 27 077 206 4 441 371                         16.4%  7 634 481.57

Research and Strategy 5 823 632 3 164 545                         54.3% 5 632 909

Total                                                    106 117 723 44 147 638                                -                   76 580 889.9

Personnel cost by salary band

Programme/activity/objective Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure               % of performance rewards to total 
personnel cost

Top Management 93 835.67 2 516 729.18 3.72%

Senior Management 701 297.10 10 101 427 6.94%

Professional Qualified 731 993.29 14 757 321.49 4.96%

Skilled  671 575.82 12 018 168.4 55.88%

Semi-skilled 180 381.90 4 081 228.90 4.42%

Unskilled 109 282.13 415 527.06                                          26.3%

TOTAL 2 488 365.91                                 44 147 636                                                 -  

Performance Rewards

Programme/activity/objective Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure % of performance rewards to total 
personnel cost

Top Management 93 835.67 2 516 729.18 3.72%

Senior Management 701 297.10 10 101 427 6.94%

Professional Qualified 731 993.29 14 757 321.49 4.96%

Skilled  671 575.82 12 018 168.4 55.88%

Semi-skilled 180 381.90 4 081 228.90 4.42%

Unskilled 109 282.13 415 527.06                                          26.3%

TOTAL 2 488 365.91                                 44 147 636                                                 -  
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Training Costs 

Detail the attempts made to fill the posts of  
senior management and highly skilled supervision 

During the year under review GTA filled thirteen (13) 
vacancies on the senior and management level, with all 
vacancies filled by external candidates. Only one position 
was filled internally on a management level. In 2014/15 
financial year, the Agency conducted a skills audit and the 
outcome of the Audit revealed that 30 percent of its 
employees require formal educational training.  

The period vacancies have remained unfilled  
and the reasons 

During the year under review, there were vacant positions  
at a lower level. The vacant positions were used to appoint 
graduates from universities.

Measures taken to successfully attract and  retain 
staff corporate services

During the year under review GTA advertised all critical 
positions on the print and Agency’s Website to attract and 
address the skills gap identified by the Skills Audit process 
conducted in 2015/16. The Work Skill Plan was prepared 
and implemented as an approach for addressing training 
needs in line with job functions.   

Programme/activity/ objective 2016/17 No.    
of Employees

2016/17 
Approved 

Posts

2016/2017 No. of 
Employees

2016/2017 
Vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Convention Bureau 10 11 10 1 9.1%

CEOs Office 11 12 11 1 8.3%

Corporate Communications  9 10 9 1 10%

Corporate Management  15 16 15 1 6.25%

Programme/activity/ objective 2016/17 No.    
of Employees

2016/17 
Approved 

Posts

2016/2017 No. of 
Employees

2016/2017 
Vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Top Management 1 1 1 0 0%

Senior Management 8 8 8 0 0%

Professional qualified 19 20 19 1 5%

Skilled 19 22 19 3 16%

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0%

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0%

Total 47 51 47 4 -

Programme/activity/ objective Personnel Expenditure Training 
Expenditure

Training Expenditure as a 
% of Personnel Cost.

No. of 
employees 

trained

Avg training 
cost per 
employee

Public Administration 12 929 743 30 000.00               0.33% 1 30 000

BCom HR 12 929 743 30 000.00              0.23% 1 50 000

BTech Tourism Management 5 513 191 20 040.00              0.36% 1 20 040

Policy Studies 5 513 191 19 450.00              0.35% 1 19 450

ND in Media 5 513 191 26 876.00              0.49% 1 26 876

Supply Chain Management 4 380 890 19 450.00              0.44% 1 19 450

TOTAL  46 779 949     145 816.00     - 6 165 816

Employment and Vacancies
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Reason leaving Number % of total no. 

  Death  0  0

Resignation 0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Retirement 4 0

Ill health 0 0

Expiry of contract 0 0

Other 0 0

   Total  4    0

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 0

Total 0

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 4 4 0 0 1 1 0 0

Professional qualified 6 6 0 1 0 1 1 1

Skilled 7 7 0 1 0 1 0 1

Semi-skilled 6 6 0 1 0 1 0 1

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 24 24 0 3 1 4 1 3

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period

Appointments Terminations Employment 
at end of the 

period

Avg training cost 
per employee

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Reasons for staff leaving

Employment changes
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Levels FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 8 0 0 2 0 1 0 1

Skilled 9 9 0 1 3 3 0 1

Semi-skilled 17 17 1 1 0 1 0 1

Unskilled 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 38 31 1 2 5 4 1 2

Levels DISABLED STAFF

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 1 1 1

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 1 1 1



Annual Financial Statements   

 
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the applicable Statements of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice as approved by the Accounting 
Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the 
Public Finance Management Act, (Act No 1 of 1999) and 
incorporate disclosure in line with the accounting philosophy 
of the Authority.    

The financial statements are based on appropriate 
accounting policies as set out in the notes to these financial 
statements and are consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates within the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 
(Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going 
concern basis of as the Board members have every reason 
to believe that the Board has adequate resources in place to 
continue in operation for the year ahead.  
 
The Board believes that the annual financial statements 
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Board as at 31 March 2017 and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.  
  

 

Mr Khehla Mthembu 
Chairperson of the Board   
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Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority 

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Gauteng Tourism Authority set out on pages 87 to 118, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 
assets, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the require-
ments of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion 

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of 
my report. 

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in 
South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial statements

6. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and for such 
internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the Gauteng Tourism Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention either to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or there is no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to the 
auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 
issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against 
predetermined objectives for selected programme presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures 
to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

11. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 
planning documents of the public entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance 
indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions 
relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of 
the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed 
from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2017:

Programmes Pages in the annual performance report

Destination Marketing 41 - 44
Business and Leisure Events 44 - 47

13. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and whether 
performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to 
determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the 
reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
following programmes:

• Destination Marketing

• Business and Leisure Events

Other matter 

15. I Draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Achievement of planned targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on page 41 to 49 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the 
year.
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Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope 

17. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material 
findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings 
but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

18. I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information

19. The Gauteng Tourism Authority’s accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include financial statements, the 
auditor’s report thereon and those selected strategic goals presented in the annual performance report that have been 
specifically reported on in the auditor’s report. 

20. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with 
legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

21. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected strategic goals presented in the 
annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, I 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  No other material 
inconsistencies were identified in the other information.

Internal control deficiencies

22. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. I did 
not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

 Johannesburg

31 July 2017
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Annexure – Auditor-General’s responsibility for the audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information for 
strategic goals and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor’s report, I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Gauteng Tourism Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention 
in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the 
information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an 
entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Communication with those charged with governance

3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my 
independence and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 
The Board Members are responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of the financial statements and related 
information included in the annual report.  

INTERNAL AND ACCOUNTING CONTROLS   

In order for the Board to discharge its responsibilities, management has developed and continues to maintain an effective 
and efficient system of internal control through its policies as per Item 3.1 of the Report of the Board.  

The system of internal controls is designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial 
records of the Authority and to safeguard and maintain accountability of the Authority’s assets.  

The Audit Committee and the Board regularly review the Risk Management Policy and system of internal control and these 
are revised as legislative and operational conditions change.  

The system of internal control includes a comprehensive budgeting system operating within strict deadlines and monitored by 
Management, the Board, the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditor.

As part of the system of internal control, the Board’s internal audit function conducts the internalaudit in accordance with the 
standards set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and the Auditor-General.  

The Board is satisfied that the system of internal control is adequate so that the financial records and system may be relied 
upon for preparing the financial statements and maintaining accountability of assets and liabilities.  

The Board applies a system of declaration of interest.  

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE   

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Board consists of three non-executive Board members and one non- executive independent 
ARC member who meets at least four times a year. The committee ensures effective communication between the Board, 
Internal Audit and the Auditor-General. The Auditor-General and the Internal Auditor have free access to the Audit and Risk 
Committee.  

The Audit and Risk Committee operates within the framework of formal terms of reference approved by the Board and has 
discharged its responsibilities for the year, in compliance with its terms of reference approvedby the Board. The Chairperson 
is Ms NM Mufamadi.  

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the applicable Statements of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice as approved by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance 
Management Act, (Act No 1 of 1999) and incorporate disclosure in line with the accounting philosophy of the Authority. 

The financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies as set out in the notes to these financial statements  
and are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates within the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999), as amended.  

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis of as the Board members have every reason to 
believe that the Board has adequate resources in place to continue in operation for the year ahead. 
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The Board believes that the annual financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Board as at 31 March 2017 and the results of its operations and cash flows  for the year then ended. 

Mr K Mthembu 

Chairperson of the Board  

Date: 31 July 2017
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1.  INTRODUCTION 

The Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) was established as an Authority on 1 April 2000 in terms of the Gauteng Tourism Act of 
1999 and succeeded the Gauteng Tourism Agency, a Section 21 Company as a going concern.  The Authority received tax 
clearance from SARS and confirmation of deregistration from the Registrar of Companies during the 2001/02 financial year.  
The Authority was deregistered for VAT on 1 October 2005 due tob the fact that National Treasury and SARS considered 
section 3(c) entities as VAT exempt.           
 
The Gauteng Tourism Act No 10 of 2001 was promulgated on 5 February 2002 with the Chief Executive Officer as the 
Accounting Authority in terms of section 49(2)(b) of the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999. On 7 June 2006, 
Act No.3 of 2006 came into effect, resulting in the establishment of a Board that became operational as from 1 February 
2007.  The Board then became the Accounting Authority of GTA.       

2.  GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

The financial statements reflect the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2017 and the results of its operations 
for the year then ended are summarised as follows: 

Actual Budget Deviation
R’000 R’000 %

Income: Provincial Grant - GTA     63 494           63 494   0,0%
            Provincial Grant - GTA - Additional     32 634           32 634   0,0%        

            GTA Other Income incl. Registration Fees       3 693             2 872   28,6%

        Interest received
99 822                                             99 000              0,8%

Expenditure per business unit:                                                        
        Visitor Information Services 14 143              14 143             0,0

Expenditure per business unit:
 Visitor Information Services  14 143  14 143 0,0%
 Business and Leisure Events  25 137  24 978 0,6%
 Destination Marketing  27 077  17 304 56,5%

             Strategic Management, Governance and Administration  43 798  41 466 5,6%
Sub Total:  Operational cost  110 155  97 890 12,5%
            Capital expenditure  1 570  1 110 41,4%
Total expenditure  111 724  99 000 12,9%

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year including Capital Expenditure  (11 902)
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year excluding Capital Expenditure  (10 332)

The total expenditure of R111,724,414, is R12,724,252 more than budgeted and indicates an overspend of 12.9%. The 
net loss  for the year, excluding Capital Expenditure of R1,569,883 is R10,332,394. The Authority also has contractual 
commitments of R11,405,049 that will be dealt with in the 2017/18 financial year.  The Authority will therefore in terms of 
TR Section 53(3) of the PFMA, request approval to retain the cash surplus for the 2016/17 financial year as this will ensure 
that all commitments as at Statement of Financial Position date be dealt with. 
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3.  BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

3.1  Legislation 

The Gauteng Tourism Authority was established in terms of the Gauteng Tourism Act No 10 of 2001 as from 5 February 
2002. Prior to this, the Gauteng Tourism Act of 1999 was applicable. The result of this process is that policies, procedures 
and delegation of powers were revised in order to provide for the transfer of the Accounting Authority from the Board to the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO). 

Subsequently, the Gauteng Tourism Act No 3 of 2006 came into effect on 7 June 2006 stipulating that a Board of Directors 
take over from the CEO the responsibilities of the Accounting Authority. The Board was appointed on 1 February 2007. The 
term of the Board expired end of October 2014 with a new Board appointed from November 2014. The GTA is a Schedule 
3(c) Provincial Public Entity in terms of the PFMA.

The Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 is implemented resulting in the maintaining of and complying to 

the following required documents: 

         • Supply-Chain Management Policy • Fraud Prevention Plan; 
         • Risk Management Policy • Asset Management Policy; and
         • Investment Policy; • Materiality Framework Policy.
         • Receivables Policy;

3.2  Governance and Management

Until 5 February 2002, the Authority was governed by a Board, appointed by the MEC for Finance and Economic 
Development. On 5 February 2002 the CEO became the Accounting Authority with the MEC, being the Executive Authority 
advised by an Advisory Committee. The Authority also has an Audit and Risk Committee; a Procurement Committee an 
Governance and Marketing Committees. Staff were appointed according to the organogram. 

As from 1 February 2007, the responsibilities of the Accounting Authority were transferred to a Board who became fully 
functional in the 2007/08 financial year. At the first Board Meeting held on 22 May 2007, a resolution was passed that  
each Board Member must sign a declaration of interest at every future Board meeting. 

The Board:   •  Retains full control over the entity, its plans and strategy; and    
               •  Acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external laws  
             and regulations, effective risk management and performance measurement, transparency and  
              effective communication both internally and externally by the entity.  

Compliance to the policies, procedures and applicable legislation, is strictly monitored. In order to improve oninternal 
controls, various other policies and procedures were also put in place. An Audit and Risk Committee is functional. The Audit 
and Risk Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the internal audit function provided by the audit company Rakoma and 
Associates on an ongoing basis with recommendations reflected in the minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings. 

3.3  Planning and Mandate 

The Authority follows a strategic approach resulting in a Strategic Plan, three year Business Plan and MTEF Budget and is 
in compliance with the requirements of the PFMA. This is done in accordance with the Annual Planning Programme. The 
Strategic Plan is revised on an annual basis, resulting in revising the Business Plan and Annual Performance Plan according-
ly. The Gauteng Tourism Development Strategy was approved by the Gauteng Executive Council during November 2007 
and has been implemented as from the 2008/9 financial year.     
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3.3  BUSINESS ACTIVITIES (continued)

These documents guide the Authority throughout the decision making process in order to meet the Authority’s    
Vision and Mission namely: 

Vision:   “Gauteng is Africa’s must see, big-city region experience!”        

Mission: “To effectively, efficiently, and professionally grow the visitor economy and enhance visitor’s experiences by:
branding, marketing and promoting tourism in Gauteng; bidding for, and hosting mega, major, significant, local and 
community events; and providing and managing visitor information services” to leverage tourism for inclusive socio-economic 
development.

3.4  CEO’s Responsibility 

The CEO is responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of the financial statements and related information 
included in this report. 

Management has developed and continues to maintain a sound accounting system and internal controls.During the 2009/10 
financial year, internal controls, policies and procedures were further adjusted to incorporate the Board in terms of the new 
Delegation of Authority as approved by the Board. The Board and CEO reviews the oper ations of the Authority on a regular 
basis in conjunction with the Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee.  

The internal controls include a risk-based system of internal accounting and administrative controls designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance with 
generally accepted business practices and the Authority’s policies and procedures. These controls are implemented by trained, 
skilled personnel with an appropriate segregation of duties and monitoredn by management and include a comprehensive 
budget ing and reporting system operating within strict deadlines and an appropriate control framework.   

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 
as approved and incorporate responsible disclosure in line with the accounting philosophy of the Authority. The financial 
statements are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates. 

During this financial year the Authority’s Strategic Plan, Business Plan and Annual Performance Plan were revised and 
subsequently implemented. An effective system of monitoring and evaluation was introduced to ensure ongoing progress 
towards reaching the targets set out in the above-mentioned plans.        
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4. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FUND 

The total amount spent on projects of a developmental nature was R28,590,941 which was 45% of the DED grant of 
R63,494,000 received for the year under review. 

The development fund expenditure per business unit was as follows     

  
  R

- Visitor Information Services 8 825 575 
- Business and Leisure Events 5 116 985 
- Destination Marketing  6 488 012 
- Strategic Management, Governance and Administration 8 243 188 

                                                                                                                    Total         28 673 760 

5.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements for the Gauteng Tourism Authority for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 are hereby 
approved. 

        

        

        

__________________________ 

Mr K Mthembu 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD     Date: 31 July 2017   
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.     

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Attendance 

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and met eight times during the year under review. 

NAME OF MEMBER              NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED    

Non- Executive Member’s 

Ms NM Mufamadi - Chairperson      8    
Dr L Zitha         7    
Mr H Moolla         8

(Independent non-executive ARC member)        

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility 

The Audit and Risk Committee’s responsibilities arise from section 51(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act (“the Act”) 
and Treasury Regulations 27.1.8 and 27.1.10.  The Audit and Risk Committee also adopted formal terms of reference as its 
audit committee charter and regulates its affairs in compliance with this charter.     

The Effectiveness of Internal Control 

The system of internal control is effective according to the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annu al 
Financial Statements and management letter of the Auditor-General. All reports of Auditors are discussed at the committee 
meetings and applicable resolutions are taken. 

Internal Audit 

The internal audit function is outsourced to Rakoma and Associates. Audits were performed in accordance with an a proved 
Risk Management Plan and Three Year Rolling Audit Plan. All the reports issued were discussed between the company and 
the relevant business unit before finalisation. It is the CEO’s responsibility to ensure that recommendations are implemented. 
 The Quality of Management and Monthly / Quarterly Reports Submitted in Terms of the Act  
 
The Committee discussed the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and  issued by the CEO to be 
recommended to the Board for approval. 

The Chief Financial Officer 

Mr Yaseen Asmal is the Authority’s Chief Financial Officer. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements, the Auditor-General’s 
management letter, management responses and the Auditor-General’s final report for the 2016/17 financial year.

 

      

___________________________________ 

Ms NM Mufamadi        
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE Date: 31 July 2017  
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16
 Actual  Actual 
 R’000  R’000 

ASSETS

Current assets                                     44,282  41,019 
Cash and cash equivalents 10.5  30,467  34,434 
Trade and other receivables from  exchange transactions  13,816  6,586 
 Debtors  -  44 
 Deposits 4.1  302  304 
 Prepayments 4.2  13,513  6,239 

Non-current assets  2,954  2,822 
Property, plant and equipment 2  2,863  2,686 
Intangible assets 3  91  136 

TOTAL ASSETS  47,236  43,842 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities                               5  32,306  18,579 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 5.1  8,252  7,301 
 Trade and other payables - Trade creditors  2,189  2,407 
 Trade and other payables - Staff Leave accruals  1,801  1,349 
 Trade and other payables - Other creditors  4,262  3,546 

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions 5.2
 Trade and other payables - Conditional Grants  24,054  11,278 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  32,306  18,579 

Capital and Reserves
Accumulated Surplus  14,930  25,263 
 Accumulated surplus  14,930  25,263 

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  47,236  43,842 

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

Notes 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

REVENUE 6
Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions
Government grants and subsidies  96,128  96,128  -  108,534  110,306  1,772 
DED Government Grant  63,494  63,494  -  60,298  60,298  - 
DED additional Government Grants  21,000  21,000  -  29,000  29,000  - 
 Marketing  21,000  21,000  -  29,000  29,000  - 
Conditional Grants  11,139  11,139  -  12,000  12,000  - 
 Bidding and Hosting  10,750  10,750  -  10,500  10,500  - 
 IDC Grants  389  389  -  -  -  - 
 Shopping Festival  -  -  -  1,500  1,500  - 
Township Revitalisation – 
Conditional Grant

 495  495  -  7,236  7,228  - 

Donations Received 6.3  -  -  -  -  1,780  - 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions  2,872  3,694  822  1,958  2,153  195 
Interest earned – external investments 6.2  2,872  3,693  822  1,775  2,054  279 
Other Income – GTA – incl Reg Fees 6.1  - -  -  183  99  (84)
TOTAL REVENUE  99,000  99,822  822  110,492  112,460  1,967 

EXPENDITURE 7
Employee related costs 7.1  46,043  46,066  23  39,845  36,108  (3,736)
(Incl. Remuneration of Executive 
Committee)
Depreciation 7.2  755  755  -  583  519  (64)
Amortisation 7.3  671  671  -  12  -  (12)
Repairs and maintenance 7.4  1,157  1,161  5  1,333  1,310  (22)
General expenses 7.5  49,264  61,500  12,237  67,918  59,826  (8,092)
TOTAL EXPENSES  97,890  110,154  12,264  109,690  97,764  (11,926)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

Notes 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

OTHER GAINS / LOSSES
 (Gains)/Loss on disposal of assets 7.6  1  1  -  20  7  13 

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  1,109  (10,333)  (11,442)  782  14,689  13,907 

SURPLUS FROM OPERATIONS  1,109  (10,333)  (11,442)  782  14,689  13,907 

Surplus/(Defecit) for the period  1,109  (10,333)  (11,442)  782  14,689  13,907 

Explanation of material difference between the final budget and actual reconciliation
The variation between Operating Budget and Actual of 12 264 025 is 13% over budget.
This is due to expenditure relating to last financial period  2015/16 that was incurred in 2016/17.
Roll-overs were used in this regard.

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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Notes Accumulated Total
Surplus/
(Deficit)

R’000 R’000
Balance at 01 April 2015  13,683  13,683 

Balance brought forward  13,683  13,683 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  14,689  14,689 
Deficit from transfer of functions between entities under  
common control 18  (3,110)  (3,110)
Surplus surrendered to Treasury  -  - 

Balance at 31 March 2016  25,262  25,262 

Balance at 01 April 2016  25,262  25,262 

Balance brought forward  25,262  25,262 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  (10,332)  (10,332)

Balance at 31 March 2017  14,929  14,929 

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY    
   
          

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

Notes 2016/17 2015/16
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers  109,650  133,745 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (115,752)  (127,009)
Cash generated/utilised from operations 10.1  (6,101)  6,735 
Interest paid  -  - 
Interest received 6.2  3,693  2,054 
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (2,408)  8,788 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment 10.2  (944)   (494)
Additions to intangible assets  (626)
Proceeds from disposal of assets  11  - 
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (1,559)  (494)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  -  - 

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  -  - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (3,967)  8,293 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10.4  34,433  26,139 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10.5  30,467  34,433 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES         
         
1.1 Basis of Preparation        
 The annual financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with the effective Standards of  
 Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations and directives of such statements  
 issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 55(1) of the Public Finance Management  
 Act, (Act No 1 of 1999).            
    
1.2 Presentation Currency        
 The financial statements are presented in South African Rand which is the Authority's functional currency.    
 See note 14 in Notes to the Financial Statements.        

1.3 Going Concern        
 These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate  
 as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.         

1.4 Comparative Information
        
1.4.1 Prior year Comparatives        

When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended,  prior year comparative amounts are 
also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification and / or restatement is not required by a Standard 
of GRAP. The nature and reason for such reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed. Where material accounting 
errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year,  the correction is made retrospectively as far as 
is practicable and the prior period comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting 
policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior period comparatives 
are restated accordingly. The presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with prior periods. 
 
1.5 Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective 

The following Standards of  GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been issued by the Accounting Standards Board, 
but will only become effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The 
entity has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in 
the development of accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5:     
   Standard       
GRAP 20     - Related Party Disclosures       
The standard provides the requirements for the disclosure          
of related parties and transactions and balances with related         
parties. The current accounting practice of the Entity for related         
disclosures is aligned to this standard. Accordingly it is not        
expected that the adoption of this standard will have a material         
impact on the financial statements of the entity.       
GRAP 32  - Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor          
The objective of this standard is to prescribe the accounting for service        
concession arrangements by the grantor, a public company. PPP         
agreements are arrangements that fall within the scope of this standard.       
The Authority has not engaged in any service concession arrangements, 
 as such this standard is not expected to have an impact on the financial 
statements of the Authority    

Effective Date Applicable

No effective  date Yes

No effective  date No
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

  
GRAP 34   - Separate Financial Statements       
The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure 
requirements for investments in controlled entities, joint ventures and associates 
when an entity prepares separate financial statements the grantor, a public 
company. PPP agreements are arrangements that fall within the scope of this 
standard. The Authority has not engaged in any service concession arrangements, 
as such this standard is not expected to have an impact on the financial statements 
of the Authority  
GRAP 108   -  Statutory Receivables      
Statutory receivables are receivables that:
a) arise from legislation, regulations, or similar means; and      
(b) require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset. 
Accordingly, it is not expected that the adoption of this standard will have a 
material impact on the financial statements of the entity. The entity expects to 
adopt the standard for the first time once it becomes effective. 
GRAP 109   -  Accounting Principals and Agents      
Objective is to see if an entity is in an Principal and Agent relationship and 
wherther the entity is a principal or Agent. The Standard does however provide 
guidance on whether revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities should be 
recognised by an agent or a principal, as well as prescribe what information 
should be disclosed when an entity is a principal or an agent It is not expected 
that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the entity. 
GRAP 110  -  Living and Non-living Resources     
The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the:      
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for 
living resources; and  disclosure requirements for non-living resources .    

Significant Judgements and Estimates      

1.6 The use of judgment, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing financialstatements.These 
judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the financial statements. Uncertainties about 
these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of  
the relevant asset or liability in future periods.     

 Judgements      

1.6.1 In the process of applying these accounting policies, management makes judgements that may have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. When this occurs, disclosure is made in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

    Estimates      

1.6.2 Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions, and  
  other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates are reviewed on a  regular 

basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review and applied  
prospectively.

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY    
   
          

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

Effective Date Applicable

No effective  date No

No effective  date Yes

No effective  date No

No effective  date Yes
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  

  Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation and amortisation 

1.6.3 Depreciation recognised on property, plant and equipment is determined with reference to the useful lives and 
residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s 
estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future 
use and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life.  In 
evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value management considers 
the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.

1.7  Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition, Initial and Subsequent Measurement and Derecognition 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised in the Authority’s Statement of Financial Position 

when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Upon initial recognition the 
Authority classifies financial instruments as financial liabilities, financial assets or residual interests in conformity 
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and to the extent that an instrument satisfies the definitions of a 
financial liability, a financial asset or a residual interest.  The Authority’s financial instruments consist of cash and bank 
balances, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables and are measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs at initial recognition.  Refer to Note 17 of the Notes to the Financial Statements. The financial instruments of 
the Authority are subsequently carried at amortised cost.    

1.7.1 Derecognition     

  A financial asset is derecognised at trade date, when: The cash flows from the asset expire, are settled  or   
 waived;   
 a) Significant risks and rewards are transferred to another party; or b) Despite having retained  

significant risks and rewards, the entity has transferred control of the asset to another entity.  A financial liability is 
derecognised when the obligation is extinguished. Where the terms of an existing financial liability are modified, it 
is also treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

1.7.2 Gains and losses     

  For financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial asset or liability is derecognised or impaired.    

1.7.3 Offsetting     

   The GTA does not offset financial assets or liabilities, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a   
  Standard of GRAP.     

1.7.4 Impairments     

   All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. The entity assesses at 

  the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a individualy significant financial.
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  

   assetor group of financial assets are impaired. Impairment is recognised in the statement of financial performance as 
            a surplus/deficit.     

1.8 Specific Financial Instruments     

1.8.1 Investments at amortised cost     

  Investments which include short-term deposits invested with the Reserve Bank and the Authority’s  appointed bankers 
are categorised as financial instruments at amortised cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

1.8.2 Cash and cash equivalents     

  Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Financial Position comprise 
cash at banks and cash on hand. Cash equivalents are held with the Reserve Bank and the Authority’s appointed 
banker. Cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost.  

1.8.3 Trade and other receivables     

  Trade and other receivables are measured at fair value plus transaction costs at initial recognition subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. All trade and other receivables are assessed at least annually for possible impairment.   
Bad debts are written off in the year when identified as irrecoverable.     

1.8.4 Trade and other payables     

  Trade and other payables are measured at fair value plus transaction costs at initial recognitionand subsequently   
 measured at amortised cost.     

1.9  Property, Plant and Equipment      

1.9.1 Initial recognition and measurement      

  Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are expected to be used during more than one 
year. These items are initially recognised at cost in the Statement of Financial Position when it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. The Authority does not componentise any asset.   

1.9.2 Depreciation       

  Depreciation commences when the item is available for use and  is calculated on the straight line method to   
 write off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life as follows:      
 

Furniture and Fittings    5% - 15%   Per Annum  Computer equipment           5% - 33%  Per Annum

    Equipment  5% - 20%   Per Annum   Motor Vehicles                         10%  Per Annum

   Leasehold improvements    Lease term       

1.9.3 Subsequent measurement       

 Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. All assets are reassessed annually to determine its useful life. Assets received as 
donation are measured at fair value at the date of recognition.      

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY    
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 
1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  

1.9.4 Subsequent expenditure       

  Subsequent cost on capitalised tangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit in 
the specific asset. All other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense when 
incurred. The effect on the current year is to decrease the carrying amount  of property, plant and equipment by the 
annual depreciation charge. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually before 
31 March based on physical inspection of each asset by the IT and Office Manager. De-recognition on disposal 
is executed in terms of the Authority’s Asset Management Policy wherebyprofits or losses on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with its carrying amount and are 

            accounted for as such in the Statement of Financial Performance.     

1.9.5 Impairments       
  Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates 

a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. A 
cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable company of assets managed with the objective of generating a 
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets.       

  The Authority tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of 
whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of 
an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service 
amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment 
loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.       

1.9.6 Derecognition       

  Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the proceeds and 
the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.    

1.10 Intangible Assets       

 Initial recognition and measurement       

   Intangible assets comprising of computer software purchased are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical 
substance and are initially recognised at cost in the Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the 
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when incurred.    

1.10.1 Amortisation       

  Amortisation commences when the asset is available for use and is calculated on the straight line method to write off 
the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life as follows:    
   
Computer Software   33% Per Annum  
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  

1.10.2 Subsequent measurement       

  Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses. All intangible assets are reassessed annually to determine its useful life. 

1.10.3  Impairment
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset  generates 
a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable company of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other 
assets or companys of assets.       

  The Authority tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of 
whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount 
of an item of  an intangible asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), 
it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount  (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is 
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.10.4 Derecognition 
  Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or 

service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the  carrying value and   

 is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.  

1.11    Employee benefits       

1.11.1 Short term employee benefits       

     Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable in the short term, i.e. within 
a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee benefits include 
remuneration and bonuses. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial  Performance 
as services are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when the specific event 
occurs. These short term employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the periodthe employee 
renders the related service or the specific event occurs.    

1.11.2  Defined contribution plans       

  The Authority operates a defined contribution provident fund for all its permanent employees, the assets  of  which 
are held in a separate trustee administered fund, which is subject to the Pension Fund Act, No 24 of 1956 as 
amended.       

  Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the 
period that such contributions become payable. This contribution expense is measured  at the undiscounted amount 
of the contribution paid or payable to the fund. A liability is recognised to the extent that any of the contributions 
have not yet been paid.       
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued  

1.12 Leasing       

 Operating leases 

1.12.1 Recognition       

  Assets subject to operating leases, i.e. those leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of  ownership 
are not transferred to the lessee through the lease, are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. The 
operating lease expense is recognised over the course of the lease arrangement. Lease payments by the Authority 
as the lessee under an operating lease are recognised as expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance on a 
straight line basis over the lease period.    

1.12.2  Measurement       

  The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. To the extent that the straight-lined lease payments differ from the 
actual lease payments the difference is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as either lease payments 
in advance (operating lease asset) or lease payments payable (operating lease liability) as the case may be. This 
resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the undiscounted difference between the straight-line lease payments 
and the contractual lease payments. 

1,13    Revenue 

  Revenue is derived from Government grants, donated assets (non-exchange transactions) as well as other income  
(exchange transactions), interest earned (external investment) and Tourist Guide Registration Fees.    

1.13.1  Revenue from Exchange Transactions       

  Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in return for services rendered, 
the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and 
discounts.       

1.13.2 Recognition and Measurement       

           Rendering of services       

  When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. 

 The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:  
 

  a)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;      

 b)  it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the        
company;       

   c)   the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and  
  d)  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. W h e n 

services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on 
a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents 
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 1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 
  the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue 

is postponed until the significant act is executed. When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of 
services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are 
recoverable.       

  Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage 
of completion is determined by total services to be performed. Revenue arising out of situations where the entity acts 
as an agent on behalf of another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or commission payable to 
the entity as compensation for executing the agreed services. Revenue from exchange transactions is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.     

Interest income       

   Interest income is recognised in surplus or deficit as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method.  
Other exchange revenue and interest earned refer to revenue and interest that accrues to the entity for services 
rendered and interest on externalinvestment and are recognised when it can be measured reliably.   

1.13.3  Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions       

  Revenue from non-exchange transaction arises when the entity either receives value from another entity without 
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or gives value to another entity without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange. 

1.13.4  Recognition and Measurement       

  Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by 
thecompany. When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the company recognises an asset, it also recognises 
revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is 
also required to recognise a  liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net 
assets, if any,  recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs 
or a condition is  satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.   
 

  Government grants are recognised on a systematic basis, either on the date of receipt or receivable as confirmed 
by the Department of Economic Development. 

1.14     Borrowing Costs / Finance Costs       

        In terms of the PFMA, the Authority is prohibited from borrowing.     

1.15     Foreign Currency Transaction      
  
   Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of  the trans-

action. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of creditors or on reporting of creditors at rates different from 
   those at which they were initially recorded are expensed.      

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the spot rate of the exchange ruling on the date of the 
transaction.       
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

  Gains and losses arising on the translation are dealt with in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period in 
which they occur. 

1.16     Surplus or Deficit
       
            Gains and Losses       

  Gains and losses arising from the disposal of assets are presented separately from other revenue in the  Statement 
of Financial Performance. Income, expenditure, gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for the 
exceptional cases where recognition directly in net assets is specifically allowed or required by a Standard of 
GRAP. 
      

1.17     Irregular Expenditure       

   Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) or is in contravention 
of the entity’s supply chain management policies. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular 
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.    

1.18     Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure       

  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted fo as expenditure in the Statement 
of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of   

 Financial Performance.
 

1.19 Recovery of Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure     

  The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, and 
is recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible officials is probable. The recovery of unauthorised 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is treated as other income.      

1.20 Post-reporting Date Events      
 
  Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting 

date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:  

a)    those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting  
date; and 

b)  those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting 
date;. Any known or anticipated event that may occur after the reporting period is declared in the notes to 
financial statements. The Authority will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect 
adjusting events after the reporting date once the event occurred. The Authority will disclose the nature of the 
event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all 
material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements.      
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

1.21 Related Party Transaction       

  The Authority operates within the auspices of its parent organisation, the Department of Economic Development who 
is primarily responsible for funding and is therefore regarded as its related party. Other related parties are Cradle 
of Humankind, Dinokeng, GEDA, Gauteng Gambling Board, Gauteng Film Commission, GGDA, Gauteng Liquor 
Board, Key Management and GTA Board. 

  The above other related parties except the GTA Board are entities within the same sphere of government and 
under common control of the Department of Economic Development.    
 
The Authority has internal controls in place to aid in the identification of related parties. All prospective  service 
providers must complete a declaration of interest form prior to appointment. Only transactions with related parties 

not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. Other related party transactions are 
also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard. The objective  of the standard and the annual financial 
statements is to provide relevant and reliable information and therefore  materiality is considered in the disclosure 
of these transactions.

1.22 Accounting Policies - Additional       

1.22.1 Contingencies / Commitments  / Other Liabilities (Provisions / Accruals) / Other Assets    

   Any known or anticipated contingent liability and asset that may occur is declared in the notes to the financial 
statements. Commitments at year end are listed in the Commitment Register and declared in the notes to the  financial 
statements. Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will 
normally result in the outflow of cash. Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 
      

  Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 
that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably. Accruals are liabilities to pay for 
goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, including amounts due to employees 
for accrued vacation pay. Accruals are reported as part of trade and other payables in the Statement of Financial 
Position. The Authority does not recognise a contingent asset and contingent liability but discloses details of 
 any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements.       

1.22.2 Budget Information in Financial Statements       

  As per GRAP 1.12, a comparison of the budget and actual amounts for the reporting period is included in the 
financial statements. The Authority’s financial statements and budget are on the same basis of accounting (accrual) 
which is a pre-requisite for this inclusion. GRAP 24 effective as from 1 April 2012 stipulates that entities may elect 
to make available its approved budget subject to disclosing the reasons for material differences between the budget 
and actual amounts. The Authority is of the opinion that disclosure of budget amounts compared to the actual 
amounts arising from execution of the budget may enhance the user of the financial statements’ understanding and 

            may also be used as a performance measure indicator.     

1.22.3 Prepayments       

  The Authority recognises prepayments made in respect of exchange transactions for the next financial year  
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

  in the Statement of Financial Position. Prepayments are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and 
adjusted if necessary. 
      

1.22.4 Deposits 
      
  The Authority recognises deposits made in respect of exchange transactions in the Statement of  Financial  Position 

as current assets.

1.22.5 Staff Advances / Loans.
 

 The Authority recognises staff advances in the Statement of Financial Position as current assets and any interest if 
applicable in the Statement of Financial Performance. These advances are granted in terms of the Authority’s HR 

 Policy on Staff Loans and/or Advances.

 1.22.6 Financial Risk Management 
      
   The Authority’s activities expose it to the following risks: 
  
  -  Credit Risk;  - Liquidity Risk;  and Market Risk.     
 
   The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Risk Management Framework of the 

Authority. The Board has established the Audit Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Authority’s risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the Members of the Board on its activities.  

The Authority’s risk management policies and systems are established to identify and analyse the risks the Authority 
faces, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Authority reports on 
its risks on a monthly basis in terms of the Board approved Risk Register. These reports are consolidated into quarterly 
reports and presented to the Audit Committee as a standing item on the Audit Committee Agenda. 
 

1.23 Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss       

  Foreign exchange gains/losses arising from international payments are recognised in the Authority’s Statement of 
Financial Performance in the period in which they occur.  Exchange differences arise when the rates at settlement 
of creditors are different from those initially recorded and expensed. Transactions in foreign currency are accounted 
for at the spot rate of the exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.      
 

1.24 Transfer of functions between entities under common control      

 Transfers of functions between entities under common control are accounted for by the transferor by derecognising 
assets and liabilities at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer. Any difference between the assets and liabilities 

 derecognised and consideration paid, if any, is recognised in accumulated surplus or deficit.   
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer Equipment Furniture & Motor Leasehold Total
Year Ended 
31 March 2017

Equipment Fittings Vehicles Improve-
ments

R R R R R R
Opening net 
carrying amount  779,439  91,559  204,792  1,610,233  -  2,686,023 

Gross carrying 
amount  1,967,996  249,422  1,262,118  1,709,982  -  5,189,518 
Accumulated 
depreciation  (1,188,557)  (157,863)  (1,057,326)  (99,749)  -  (2,503,495)

Additions  209,363  17,705  310,848  -  406,100  944,016 

Disposals  (12,136)  -  -  -  -  (12,136)

Cost  126,393  14,622  19,607  -  -  160,622 
Depreciation 
charge - disposals  (114,257)  (14,622)  (19,607)  -  -  (148,486)

Depreciation 
charge  (442,865)  (22,584)  (73,491)  (170,998)  (45,092)  (755,030)

Closing net 
carrying amount  533,800  86,681  442,149  1,439,235  361,008  2,862,873 

Gross carrying 
amount  2,050,966  252,505  1,553,359  1,709,982  406,100  5,972,912 
Accumulated 
depreciation  (1,517,165)  (165,825)  (1,111,210)  (270,747)  (45,092)  (3,110,039)
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Computer Equipment Furniture & Motor Leasehold Total
Year Ended 
31 March 2016

Equipment Fittings Vehicles Improve-
ments

R R R R R R
Opening net 
carrying amount  860,205  15,955  210,565  -  -  1,086,725 

Gross carrying 
amount  1,779,490  170,210  1,220,283  -  -  3,169,983 
Accumulated 
depreciation  (919,285)  (154,255)  (1,009,718)  -  -  (2,083,258)

Additions  274,155  45,964  38,048  -  -  358,167 
Donations  8,580  40,748  7,797  1,709,982  -  1,767,107 

Disposals  (5,487)  (1,219)  (10)  -  -  (6,716)

Cost  94,229  7,500  4,010  -  -  105,739 
Depreciation 
charge - disposals  (88,742)  (6,281)  (4,000)  -  -  (99,023)

Depreciation 
charge  (358,014)  (9,889)  (51,608)  (99,749)  -  (519,260)

Closing net 
carrying amount  779,439  91,559  204,792  1,610,233  -  2,686,024 

Gross carrying 
amount  1,967,996  249,422  1,262,118  1,709,982  -  5,189,518 
Accumulated 
depreciation  (1,188,557)  (157,863)  (1,057,326)  (99,749)  -  (2,503,495)
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16

R R
3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS – COMPUTER SOFTWARE

Opening net carrying amount  136,296  - 
Gross carrying amount  136,296  - 
Accumulated amortisation  -  - 
Accumulated impairment deficit  -  - 
Additions  625,867  136,296 
Amortisation  671,299  - 

Closing net carrying amount 31 March  90,864  136,296 
Gross carrying amount  762,163  136,296 
Accumulated amortisation  671,299  - 

4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  13,815,533  6,585,869 

4.1 Trade Receivables from exchange transactions – Balances  302,100  347,259 
Trade and other receivables – Deposits  302,100  303,720 
Trade and other receivables from – Debtors  -  43,539 

4.1.1 Deposits  302,100  303,720 
Deposit: Water Bottles from exchange transactions  -  1,620 
Deposit: Rental Premises from exchange transactions  302,100  302,100 

4.1.2 Ageing of Trade & other receivables from exchange 
transactions (These assets as past due but not impaired) 
Current (0 – 30 days)  -  39,877 
31 – 60 days  -  - 
61 – 90 days  -  - 
91 – 120 days  -  - 
121 – 365 days  -  3,254 

 302,100  303,720 

Total  302,100  346,851 

No provision for doubtful debts was made due to the fact that R302,100 relates to a contract that expired in 
April 2015 for office premises in No Central Place, Newtown, and is recoverable
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16
R R

4.2 Current Asset Prepayments  13,513,433  6,238,610 
SAACI  -  8,250 
Bizz Community  19,000  - 
Media Circulation  -  8,400 
ICCA and SAMRO  1,042  40,617 
VIP Licence  26,836  24,848 
Southern Union Insurance  -  26,042 
Independent Newspapers  -  1,328 
SABC  -  397 
Provantage  457,140  5,944,013 
Encirca  -  7,338 
Economic impact  230,268  - 
Mokwinnig  209,147  - 
UNWTO  -  21,206 
DMA  -  19,127 
Flow Communications  -  112,000 
Synergy  120,000 
South Sky cycles  50,000 
World Choir – African Cultural  12,400,000 
Sabinet  -  25,044 

5. CURRENT LIABILITIES  32,305,737  18,579,086 

5.1 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions  8,251,760  7,301,465 

5.1.1  Trade and other payables – Creditors  2,189,472  2,406,713 

Trade and other payables – Other Creditors  6,062,288  4,894,752 
Accrual for Thirteenth Cheque 5.3.1  541,498  399,990 
Accrual for Statutory Costs  4,018  16,297 
Accrual for Board Remuneration/Salaries  7,324  47,851 
Allowed accumulated vacation leave accrual 5.3.2  1,800,612  1,348,713 
Staff savings  -  18,600 
Staff Claims  4,229  4,064 
124 Main Street Rental  3,704,608  3,059,236 
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16
R R

5.2 Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

5.2.1 Trade and other payables – Conditional Grants  24,053,977  -  11,277,621 
Reconciliation of Conditional Grants
Balance at the beginning of the year  11,277,621  8,005,393 
Receipts – DED – Additional Conditional Grants  24,410,800  22,500,000 
Unspent at year end
Bidding and Hosting  20,000,000  10,500,000 
Research and Planning  81,207  81,207 
Skills Development  93,899  93,899 
Product Development  59,318  554,362 
Township SMME Development  48,153  48,153 
Maropeng upgrades  318,000  - 
IDC Craft CSP  1,173,400  - 
NDT Safety Monitors  2,280,000  - 
Transferred to revenue/expenditure (11,634,444) (19,227,772)
Closing Balance  24,053,977  -  11,277,621 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassifed to enhance 
comparability.

5.3 Reconciliation of Accruals
5.3.1 Accrual for Leave Pay – Balance as at 1 April  1,348,714  1,402,650 

Additional accrual  451,899  - 
Unused amounts reversed  -  (53,937)
Balance as at 31 March  1,800,612  1,348,714 

5.3.2 Accrual for 13th Cheque – Balance as at 1 April  399,991  409,576 
Additional accrual  141,507  - 
Unused amounts reversed  -  (9,585)
Balance as at 31 March  541,499  399,991 

6. REVENUE
Revenue comprises revenue received in respect of: 99,822,137 110,679,127 
Non-exchange transactions – DED Government Grants  63,494,000  60,298,000 
Non-exchange transactions – DED – Additional Grants  21,000,000  29,000,000 
Non-exchange transactions – DED – Conditional Grants  11,245,044  19,227,773 
Non-exchange transactions – IDC-CRAFT  389,400  - 
Other Income – exchange transactions 6.1  372  99,459 
Income from Investments 6.2  3,693,321  2,053,896 
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16
R R

6.1 Other Income – exchange transactions  372  99,459 
6.1.1 Comprises of main income budget votes  -  99,459 

Registration Fees  -  99,459 
GHS – Tuition, Accommodation and Venue Fees  -  - 

6.1.2 Other Income  372  - 

6.2 Income from Investments  3,693,321  2,053,896 
Interest from Corporation for Public Deposits  3,112,874  1,748,165 
Interest from ABSA and FNB  580,447  305,730 

6.3 Income – non-exchange transactions
Donations received  -  1,780,379 

7. EXPENDITURE 110,160,776  97,770,693 
7.1 Employee related costs

Wages and salaries  46,066,151  36,108,229 

Empolyee related costs include:
CEO and Senior Manager’s emoluments 8.1.1  12,118,735  10,845,660 
Fees for Non-executive Board Members 8.1.2  567,070  512,426 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassifed to enhance comparability.

7.2 Depreciation  755,030  519,262 
Plant, machinery and equipment  22,584  9,889 
Computer equiment and peripherals  442,865  358,014 
Office furniture and fittings  73,491  51,611 
Leasehold Improvements  45,092 
Motor Vehicles  170,998  99,749 

7.3 Amortisation  671,299  - 

7.4 Repairs and maintenance 
Maintenance, repairs and running costs  1,161,113  1,310,177 
Property and Buildings  30,995  226,665 
Machinery and Equipment  1,016,536  949,603 
Other Maintenance  113,582  133,910 
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2016/17 2015/16
R R

7.5 General expenses  61,500,466  59,826,309 
Admin fees  99,881  26,442 
Audit fees – Statutory  651,036  709,943 
Audit fees – Internal  318,466  422,846 
Bank Charges  30,483  26,986 
Cleaning Services  486,301  410,105 
Conference and delegations  2,267,471  1,439,726 
Entertainment  56,425  109,722 
Electricity  554,247  603,068 
Insurance  402,401  242,488 
Integrated Marketing and Communications  42,259,265  40,735,211 
Legal Fees  371,583  94,068 
Parking  135,098  60,039 
Postage  560  930 
Printing and stationery  192,774  150,985 
Rental of buildings  7,011,630  7,164,650 
Rental of equipment  -  - 
Rental of vehicles  181,449  177,259 
Security costs  490,095  421,249 
Subscriptions and publications  63,342  100,947 
Telephone costs  374,565  280,910 
Craft workshop  389,400  - 
Staff Training and Development  463,267  370,223 
Foreign Exchange (Profit)/Loss  -  10,533 
Other  4,700,726  6,267,977 

7.6 Other gains/losses
(Gains)/Loss on disposal of assets (Property, plant and Equipment)  685  6,715 
See Notes to the Annual Financial Statements No 2.1

8. RELATED PARTIES
Joint Ventures N/A Associates N/A

Members of key management Yes
Close family member of key 
management N/A

The Authority’s main related party is the Department of Economic Development who is primarily 
responsible for funding. Other related parties during the period under review were Members of Key 
Management and the GTA Board.

All related parties except the GTA Board are within the same sphere of government and/or under common control 
of the Department.
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2017 2017 2016 2016
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Transactions Receivable Transactions Receivable
(Payable) (Payable)

8.1 Related Party Transactions
Transactions  - 
Department of Economic Development  104,744  -  112,148 
Department of Finance – Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury  21,000 
Cradle of Humankind  -  -  -  - 
Dinokeng  -  -  -  - 
Constitutional Hill (A subsidiary of GGDA)  121  (121)  10  10 
Staff Debtor – Leave in Advance/ex-CEO 
Cell Phone  -  -  3  3 
Executive Management Remuneration 8.1.1)  12,119  -  10,846  - 
GTA Board Emoluments (Note 8.1.2)  567  -  512  - 
Receivables (Payables) Balances  117,551  (121)  144,519  13 



111

8.1.1 CEO and Senior Managers 
Emoluments

Salary/
Acting

Bonuses
 and perform

payments

Prov Fund
contribution

Cell/Med 
Aid

Total

contribution

 R  R  R  R R
Executive Staff Members
S Ngwenya: CEO  2,420,964  93,836  -  2,514,800 

MN Kubeka: SM
Dest Marketing 

 1,034,028  182,357  77,552  53,673  1,347,610 

KN Gaoganediwe: SM
Corp Communication

 1,265,976  117,764  -  -  1,383,740 

S Moeketsi: SM
Corporate Services

 1,034,028  206,405  77,552  53,673  1,371,658 

Y Asmal: CFO  1,878,372  174,732  -  -  2,053,104 

FH Ngqobe: 
Head in the CEO Office

 900,000  900,000 

T Nkuna: SM 1 October 2016
Research and Strategy

 425,000  18,478  31,875  20,756  496,109 

M Kona: SM
Regional Tourism

 1,034,028  182,357  77,552  53,673  1,347,610 

KS Sithole: SM – R/S until 
30 September

 564,830  139,273  -  -  704,103 

Year ended 31/03/2017  10,557,226  1,115,203  264,531  181,775  12,118,735 

D Robertson: CEO until 
30 November 2015

 1,435,616  250,398  -  -  1,686,014 

S Ngwenya: CEO from 
1 December 2015

 750,685  -  -  -  750,685 

M Moeti: SM – until 30 April 
2015
Destination Management

 121,361  24,855  5,592  3,949  155,757 

MN Kubeka: SM
Dest Marketing 

 961,884  169,634  72,141  48,558  1,252,217 

KN Gaoganediwe: SM
Corp Communication

 1,177,644  136,935  -  -  1,314,579 

S Moeketsi: SM
Corporate Services

 961,884  192,003  72,141  48,558  1,274,586 

Y Asmal: CFO  1,747,320  203,177  -  -  1,950,497 
KS Sithole: SM – R/S  961,884  194,782  72,141  2,670  1,231,478 
M Kona: SM – RT  961,884  147,265  72,141  48,558  1,229,847 
Year ended 31/03/2016  9,080,162  1,319,048  294,157  152,293  10,845,660 
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2016/17 2015/16
R R

8. RELATED PARTIES – continued
8.1.2 Board Emoluments  567,070  512,426 

Mr S Mthembu (Chairperson)  182,992  185,258 
Dr Z Zitha  118,068  73,756 
Ms CGM Chiloane  48,217  29,672 
Mr SR Monakedi (Until September 2015)  18,159 
Ms NM Mufamadi  77,206  65,604 
Mr H Ntshingila  42,035  44,122 
Ms ME Ravele  35,499  29,672 
Ms KLN Sangoni  29,672  29,479 
Mr ME Zwane Waka Sambo  25,577 
Mr H Moolla (From Nov 2015) (Independent non-executive ARC 
Member)
Ms PP Ratlabala (Non- executive)                                                                               -                                -

 33,381  11,127 
 

9. CONTINGENCIES/OTHER LIABILITIES (PROVISIONS/ACCRUALS)/OTHER ASSETS

As from 1 April 2009 when GRAP 19 became effective, provisions for accrued leave and thirteenth
cheque were reclassified retrospectively as accruals under Trade and other payables as to
ensure compliance with GRAP 19.17. Refer to 1.22 in the Accounting Policies.
Accruals were made in the following manner:
– 

 
Leave Pay is set at 100% of all outstanding allowed accumulated leave at statement of position date;

– 
 
Thirteenth Cheque is made for January to March and is calculated on the actual December  payout of the 
current financial year divided by four. 

Other contingent liability during the period under review is the cash surplus of R30,466,736.92
The Authority will therefore in terms of TR and Section 53(3) of the PFMA, requested approval to retain the
surplus for the 2016/17 financial year as this will ensure that all commitments as at Statement of 
Financial Position date be dealt with.

-

-
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Notes 2016/17 2015/16
R’000  R’000 

10. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
10.1 Reconciliation of net (deficit)/surplus before taxation to cash 

(utilised) generated from operations

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year (From Trial Balance)  (10,332)  14,689 
Adjusted for:
 Depreciation  755  519 
Amortisation  671  - 
 (Gain)/loss on disposal  1  7 
 Investment income  (3,693)  (2,054)

Operating surplus/(deficit) before working capital changes  (12,599)  13,161 

Other Non-cash movements (Surplus/GHS surrender to Treasury)  -  (3,110)

Working capital changes  6,497  (3,315)
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable  (7,230)  (575)
Increase/(Decrease) in Conditional Grants  12,776  3,272 
Increase/(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable  950  (4,245)
Increase/(Decrease)/Increase in Donations  -  (1,767)

Cash (utilised by)/generated from operations  (6,102)  6,736 

10.2 Adjustments to property, plant and equipment
Additions to property, plant and equipment  944  2,125 
Computer equipment  209  283 
Furniture and Fittings  311  46 
Equipment  18  87 
Leasehold improvements  406 
Motor Vehicles  -  1,710 

10.3 Adjustments to intangible assets  626  136 
Additions to intangible assets  626  136 

10.4 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  34,433  26,139 
Current bank account  10,520  3,968 
Corporation for Public Deposits Account (restricted use)  23,906  22,158 
Petty cash  7  12 

10.5 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  30,467  34,433 
Current bank account  4,442  10,520 
Corporation for Public Deposits Account (restricted use)  26,019  23,906 
Petty cash  6  7 
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11. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
The Accumulated Surplus reflects net assets and includes retained income for future use amounting to  
R14 929 000

12. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Authority has made provision for a Liberty Life Group Provident Fund for GTA personnel. The
Authority contributes 100% of the amount payable for provident fund for staff who join the scheme at 7.5% 
and 50% of the amount payable for staff who join at 15% is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance. The Liberty Life Provident Fund is governed by the Pension Fund (Act No. 24 of 
1956) and incorporated in the GTA Staff Policies.

13. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/NON-CAPITAL COMMITMENTS/COMMITMENTS-AUTHORISED 
EXPENDITURE

13.1 Operating lease arrangements/Non-capital Commitments

At the statement of financial position date the GTA had oustanding commitments under non-cancellable 
operating leases, which fall due as follows: 

Mar-17 Mar-16
R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year  8,003  7,343 Office Rental Lease
 - 19 Internet Solutions Telco Services

 8 90 Motor Vehicle (1)
 - 7 Motor Vehicle (2)

 11  42 MTN, Vodacom
 11  - Mineral waterman

Later than 1 year but not  24,991  32,994 Office Rental Lease
later than 5 years  -  2 MTN, Vodacom

 - 0 Internet Solutions Telco Services
 - 8 Motor Vehicle (1)

 7 0 Mineral waterman
Later than 5 years  -  - 

33,031 40,505

The Authority is in a lease agreement with the Department of Economic Development until November 2020. 
The total value of the agreement of R53,253,495 was straightlined and is listed in the lease note.
The period of the lease was for 9 years and 11 months from inception with a 10% escalation
The lease agreements do not impose any restrictions.
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2017 2016
R’000 R’000

13.2 Commitments – Authorised Expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for

– Operating expenditure (as per Commitm/Contracts Register)  11,405  18,075 
 11,405  18,075 

14. PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The financial statement figures have been stated in Rand terms as this is the Authority’s functional currency. All 
amounts have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R1,000) in the statements and in Note 8.1; 
10.1 to 13.2 and 19 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The detailed Statement of Financial Performance 
(Annexure 1) is stated in Rand terms.

15. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
There are no known developments that may have an impact on the Authority after the period under review.

16. SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The Authority fulfilling its mandate under the auspices of the Provincial Government is reliant on Government as its 
major source of revenue. It therefore does not anticipate any interest rate risk caused by fluctuating interest rates as 
it does not operate a system of debtors of significant value.
The Authority also manages its risks through a Risk Management Plan.

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Authority’s financial instruments are carried at amortised cost and are summarised as follows:

2017 2017
Assets Trade 

and other 
receivables

R Liabilities Trade and other 
payables

R

Trade 
receivables  302,100 

Trade payables – 
Creditors  2,189,472 

Staff Debtors  - 
Payments received in 
advance  - 

Prepayments  13,513,433 Conditional Grants  24,053,977 
Cash and bank  30,466,737 Staff leave accrual  1,800,612 
Total  44,282,270 Thirteenth cheque accrual  541,498 

Other creditors  3,720,178 
Total  32,305,737 
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

2016
Assets Trade and other receivables  R

Trade receivables  347,259 
Prepayments  6,238,610 
Cash and bank  34,433,563 
Total  41,019,433 

Liabilities Trade and other payables
Trade payables  2,406,713 
Payments received in advance  - 
Staff leave accrual  1,348,713 
Thirteenth cheque accrual  399,990 
Conditional Grants  11,277,621 
Other creditors  3,146,049 
Total  18,579,086 

2017 2016
R R

Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
The financial assets carried at amortised cost expose the entity to credit risk.  
The value of the maximum exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of 
classes of financial assets at amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalents  30,466,737  34,433,563 
Trade and other receivables from 
exchange transactions  302,100  346,851 
Other current financial assets  13,513,433  6,239,018 

Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the Statement of Financial Position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table 
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
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2017
Not later than 

one month

Later than one 
month and 

not later than 
three months

Later than 
three months 
and not later 
than one year

Later than one 
year and not 
later than five 

years
Gross operating lease obligations  -  -  -  3,704,608 
Trade and other payables  2,189,472  -  -  - 
13th Cheque accrual  -  -  541,498  - 
Leave accrual  150,051 300,102 1,350,459  - 
Other  15,571  20,318,000  3,735,977  - 

2016
Not later than 

one month

Later than one 
month and 

not later than 
three months

Later than 
three months 
and not later 
than one year

Later than one 
year and not 
later than five 

years
Gross operating lease obligations  -  -  -  3,059,000 
Trade and other payables  2,406,713  -  -  - 
13th Cheque accrual  -  -  399,990  - 
Leave accrual  112,393 224,785 1,011,534
Other  86,813  10,500,000  3,836,857  - 

17.1 Financial Risk Management
The Authority’s exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks is dealt with in terms of its risk management 
policies and systems in place as stipulated in accounting policy 1.22.6.
During the period under review, no impairment, write offs and/or credit losses were identified.

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATION RESULTING FROM THE TRANSFER OF FUNCTION
In accordance with the protocol signed between DED and the Northwest Department of Economic Development, 
Conservation and Tourism, the Authority was appointed to manage GHS from 1 April 2014. In accordance with 
the protocol signed all assets of GHS were transferred to DED as the custodian of those assets.

In its capacity as the managing agent of GHS the Authority was granted the power to make operating and 
financial decisions for GHS, which exhibited its effective control of GHS.  Furthermore, in accordance with the 
arrangement with DED, all revenue generated by GHS accrued to the Authority and the Authority was responsible 
for funding the expenditure of GHS. However, DED provided financial assistance in the form of a grant to help 
fund the operating and capital expenditure of GHS. All assets acquired, were however remitted to DED as the  
custodian of the assets of GHS.

With effect from 1 April 2015 the arrangement with DED was amended. In accordance with the amendment the 
Authority would continue to act as management agent in respect of GHS, but  would no longer have the power 
to make operating and financial decisions. The power to make operating and financial decisions was moved to 
DED. Furthermore, in accordance with the  amended arrangement revenue and expenditure of GHS no longer 
accrued to the Authority. This change in the arrangement effectively resulted in a transfer of functions between  the 
Authority and the DED.

Through the amendment of the arrangement with DED, the authority lost its control over GHS and therefore no 
longer includes the operating results of GHS in its financial statements.
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The impact of the transfer of functions, that resulted in the discontinued operation, are as follows:

The deficit from the transfer of functions between entities under common control consists of:
2015/16

R’000
Trade and other receivables from exchange transaction  (32) 
Unspent operating grant of GHS surrendered to DED  3,142 
Deficit from the transfer of functions between entities under common control  3,110 

2016/17 2015/16
 R R

19. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance  49,733  - 
Condoned during the year (49,733)
Analysis of irregular expenditure

19.1 2 Supplier’s contracts were extended without following the  
procurement process  39,593 

19.2 1 Supplier invoice was higher than the original quotation  10,140 

Closing balance  -  49,733 
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(Unaudited supplementary schedules)

The Authority’s Materiality Framework 
is as follows:
Legislative reference Quantity level Quality level
PFMA sec 50(1)(C)    
1.  The Accounting Authority for a 
public entity must -  (c) on request, 
disclose to the executive authority  
responsible for that public entity or 
the legislature to which the public 
entity is accountable, all material 
facts,  including those reasonably  
discoverable, which in any way may 
influence the decisions or actions of 
the executive authority or that of the 
legislature.

All figures that might influence the 
decision by the executive authority.  
Monthly reports to the DED will 
include explanatory notes if the actual 
expenditure / revenue per business 
unit deviates more than 5% from 
budget.

Any item or event of which specific 
disclosure is required by law.  All facts 
discovered of which its omission or 
misstatement in the Board’s opinion, 
could influence the decision by the 
executive authority.

PFMA sec 54(2) All transactions as required. All figures as applicable
PFMA sec 55(2)(b)(i) (2) 
‘The annual report and financial 
statements referred to in subsection (1)
(d) must-
(b) any material losses through criminal 
conduct and any irregular expenditure  
and fruitless   expenditure that occurred 
and wasteful  during the financial year.

Any loss through criminal conduct 
identified.  Any loss through irregular/
fruitless/wasteful expenditure and if the 
combined total exceeds the planning 
materiality figure used by the external 
auditors for the year under review.

Any loss identified through criminal 
conduct.

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY    
   
          

MATERIAL FRAMEWORK 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 
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Annexure 1
(Unaudited supplementary schedule)

Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
INCOME  99,000,162  99,822,137 110,492,206 112,459,506 
DED Subsidy – GTA  63,494,000  63,494,000  60,298,000  60,298,000 
DED Additional Subsidy  21,000,000  21,000,000  29,000,000  29,000,000 
IDC-CRAFTS  389,400  389,400  -  - 

 -  -  - 
Registration Fees  -  -  180,000  97,260 
Other – GHS  -  372  -  - 
Registration Other  -  -  3,000  2,199 
Study Assistance Refund  -  -  - 
Telephone Staff Refund  -  -  -  - 
Grant Bidding and Hosting  10,750,000  10,750,000  10,500,000  10,500,000 
Interest Received  2,871,718  3,693,321  1,775,000  2,053,896 
Conditional Grants  495,044  495,044  8,736,206  8,727,773 
Profit on Disposal of Assets  -  -  -  1,780,379 

EXPENDITURE

FINANCE  7,903,579  7,906,833  5,984,415  5,757,018 
Fin – Provision for Leave  451,899  451,899  -  - 
Fin – Provision for Thirteenth cheque  141,507  141,507  7,640  - 
Fin – Accounting Fees  99,881  99,881  31,215  26,442 
Fin- Audit Internal  318,466  318,466  425,000  422,846 
Fin – Audit External  651,036  651,036  735,000  709,943 
Fin – Bank charges  30,483  30,483  36,570  26,986 
Fin – Conference & Meetings  -  -  60,000  13,536 
Fin – Financial Planning  -  -  28,090  - 
Fin – Insurance  402,401  402,401  245,900  242,488 
Fin – Staff Total  4,380,890  4,380,890  3,800,000  3,788,798 
Fin – Staff Unallocated  -  -  -  - 
Fin – Scrapped Assets  685  685  20,000  6,715 
Fin – Amortisation  671,299  671,299  12,000  - 
Fin – Bad Debt Write off  -  3,254 
Fin – Depreciation  755,030  755,030  583,000  519,262 
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Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
OFFICE OF THE CEO
Board and Forum Matters  3,791,577  3,910,613  4,549,417  3,946,227 
Board Secretariat  402,604  402,604  331,800  26,887 
Annual Report  289,471  282,303  275,600  274,589 
Attend conf & Forums Local  260,000  375,019  110,000  53,581 
Attend conf & Forums Intern  1,412,120  1,400,255  330,000  323,222 
Attend conf & Forums Board Local  168,436  168,436  242,024  228,361 
Attend conf & Forums Board Intern  237,184  237,184  224,000  187,600 
CEO Project  465,598  465,598  2,458,393  2,280,270 
Board Payments & Allowances  544,019  567,070  514,000  512,426 
CEO Entertainment  12,146  12,146  63,600  59,292 
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Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
CORPORATE SERVICES
Operational Cost
Human Resources  25,800,079  25,767,444  22,602,347  20,679,352 
CS – Employee Wellness  74,930  74,930  21,200  3,550 
CS – Staff Development & Training  463,267  463,267  371,000  370,223 
CS – Labour Relations  -  -  1,200  - 
CS – Organisational Development  546,555  546,555  653,704  - 
CS – Recruitment  541,546  541,546  137,000  134,238 
CS – Study Assistance  141,347  141,347  125,775  57,127 
CS – Conference and Meetings  3,019  3,019  21,200  - 
CS – Courier and Postage  560  560  11,236  930 
CS – Entertainment  -  -  10,200  1,188 
CS – Legal Fees  371,583  371,583  105,780  94,068 
CS – Library Research  -  -  12,400  - 
CS – Motor Vehicle Expenses  113,582  113,582  134,506  133,910 
CS – Office Maintenance & consumables  30,995  30,995  248,160  226,665 
CS – Offibc Electricity  554,247  554,247  878,043  603,068 
CS – Office Rent  7,011,630  7,011,630  7,166,564  7,164,650 
CS – 124 Main St cleaning  486,301  486,301  412,444  410,105 
CS – Parking Official  135,098  135,098  63,600  60,039 
CS – Motor Vehicle Lease  218,781  181,449  178,540  177,259 
CS – Printing & Stationery  192,774  192,774  151,000  150,985 
CS – Refreshments  44,085  44,279  77,000  49,242 
CS – Relocation costs  -  -  -  - 
CS – Security & Safety  490,095  490,095  427,273  421,249 
CS – Subscriptions & Library  63,342  63,342  89,214  48,252 
CS – Telephones  136,914  136,914  198,272  56,034 
CS – Bell Phones and Data cards  237,651  237,651  298,496  224,876 
CS IcT – Dev/Maint of IT, Tel, Audio, etc.  1,012,034  1,016,536  950,000  949,603 
CS IcT – Lease of Equipment  -  -  58,540  - 
CS – Staff Total  12,929,743  12,929,743  9,800,000  9,342,092 
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Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
VIS  14,142,782  14,142,782  17,056,425  15,539,115 
Training Programme  13,717,896  13,717,896  14,177,000  12,868,137 
Registration of Tourist Guides  -  200,000  177,669 
Staff  13,717,896  13,717,896  13,500,000  12,223,373 

 424,885  424,885  2,879,425  2,670,977 
Local Auth, community Tour Projects  384,535  384,535  -  - 
Instit F/W for Responsible Tourism  -  -  200,000  76,965 
Responsible Tourism  -  -  250,000  165,298 
Tourism Awareness Prog (DF)  35,430  35,430  2,315,425  2,314,824 
Information Services (30%DF)  4,920  4,920  114,000  113,891 

Business and Leisure Events  24,977,520  25,136,621  23,190,000  20,615,642 
MICE Exhibitions  -  -  -  - 
MICE Bid Support  2,672,197  2,672,197  823,000  822,468 
MICE Sales & Marketing Programme  179,620  179,620  100,000  68,588 
MIcE Sales Missions  -  -  330,000  206,054 
Meetings Africa  -  -  420,000  387,783 
IMEX America, CIBTM & EIBTM  131,784  131,784  400,000  364,555 
Signature Event Support  4,248,814  4,248,814  14,480,000  14,479,840 
Implementation of Events Strategy  -  -  248,000  - 
SA International Trade Shows (70%DF)  -  -  450,000  325,607 
World Travel Market Africa  202,954  202,954  221,000  220,020 
Trade FAM Trips  11,847  20,948  300,000  20,870 
Township Development  1,436,182  1,436,182  50,000  49,013 
Trade Partnerships and Activations  -  -  -  - 
Joint Marketing Initiatives  80,929  230,929  1,399,000  463,146 
Trade Strategy Implementation  -  -  500,000  21,500 
Road Shows  -  -  -  - 
Bidding and Hosting campaigns  10,500,000  10,500,000 - -
Staff  5,513,191  5,513,191  3,469,000  3,186,199 
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Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
 17 303 546  27 077 206  29 043 892  25 090 564 

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
Digital Marketing
  Digital Agency & Digital Partnerships  599 118  4 517 767  5 150 000  3 548 917 
  Development and Engagement  300 100  300 100  200 000  148 365 
Destination communication
  Global Media Relations Progr  1 400 000  1 348 929  1 120 000  1 118 947 
  Media Buying & Partnerships  1 000 000  1 744 229  1 236 000  1 235 658 
  National Media Relations Prog  1 381 461  1 381 461  410 000  408 337 
  Media Tracking and Monitoring  -  -  150 000  94 050 
  Media Subscriptions  -  -  10 000  - 
Leisure & consumer (Int/Dom)
  Domestic Marketing campaigns  2 000 000  4 099 426  2 175 000  2 141 567 
  Township Tourism Market  640 000  640 000  800 000  791 870 
  Stay Another Day  19 888  19 888  150 000  - 
  Signatures collection  285 482  285 482  250 000  125 037 
  Lobal consumer Shows  -  -  570 000  567 091 
  International Trade Shows  374 521  374 521  600 000  429 925 
  Domestic FAM Trips  80 454  80 454  231 000  230 322 
Brand & creative Services
  Brand Milestones  368 570  368 570  504 000  495 855 
  Impl. of the Cullinan Marketing Strat  -  -  45 000  18 240 
  Brand Toolkits  -  -  310 000  - 
  Photography & Video  -  72 588  170 000  79 915 
  Sub-brands ID Development  -  -  200 000  161 400 
  Branding  378 750  378 750  -  - 
  Brand & Trade Mark Protection  -  -  100 000  - 
  Stay Another Day - Brand & campaign  -  -  300 000  131 100 
Brand collateral - - - -
  Collateral Development  710 000  984 853  1 450 000  1 340 740 
  Destination Magazine (30%DF)  1 493 832  537 544  1 150 000  1 149 466 
  Airport TV  1 830 000  5 501 273  5 500 000  5 041 667 
  Media Relations  -  -  -  - 
  E-Marketing Travel  -  -  -  - 
  Communications Travel  -  -  -  - 
  Township Development  -  -  4 047 892  4 047 298 
  Staff  4 441 371  4 441 371  2 215 000  1 784 797 
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Budget Actual Budget Actual
2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2015/16

R R R R
RESEARCH AND STRATEGY  3,971,080  6,213,032  7,283,710  6,142,774 
Strategic Research Plan (60%DF)  -  2,241,952  765,821  298,928 
Strategic Planning (60%DF)  333,576  333,576  100,000  82,095 
conference & Seminars (DF)  83,558  83,558  637,889  633,426 
Subscriptions  -  -  53,000  52,695 
Craft workshop  389,400  389,400  77,000 -
Monitoring and Evaluation  -  -  50,000 -
Staff  3,164,545  3,164,545  5,600,000  5,075,631 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  -  -  -  - 
GARANKUWA HOTEL SCHOOL - -  -  - 

Total Expenditure  97,890,162  110,154,531  109,710,206  97,770,693 

Net Surplus/DefiCit For The Year  1,110,000  (10,333,000)  782,000  25,033,583 

GAUTENG TOURISM AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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